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DPIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 13* Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Summary of the Financial Results for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 are as under:
Amount (in Cr.) Amount (in Rs.)

Particulars For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(Ind AS) (GAAP)
Total Revenue 1760.60 931,13,47,516
Total Expenses 1313.32 553,70,66,182
Profit before Tax 44728 377,42,81,334
Less: Provision for Current Tax 110.71 124,97,42,330
Add: Provision for Deferred Tax Credit 13.57 2,44,69,469
Profit After Tax 323.00 254,90,08,473
Balance of Profit brought forward 328.71 135,01,29,064
Less: Adjustment on account of Depreciation 651.71
Amount available for appropriation 389,91,37,537
Less: Appropriations: 83.83
Transfer to Reserve Fund (u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act 50,98,01,692
1934) 64.60
Transfer to Special reserve fund u/s 36(1)(viii) of 10,77,04,989
the Income Tax Act, 1861 43.74
Provision for dividend on Preference shares 2.25 2,25,00,000
Balance of Profit carried forward 2.78 325,91,30,856
Earnings per Equity Share 454.51 54.70 |

BUSINE EVIEW

The revenue from the operations of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 stood at Rs.
1,759.91 Crores and profit after tax of the Company was Rs. 323.00 Crores. The profitahility of the
Company is expected to further grow in the coming years.

STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is a non-deposit taking NBFC registered with the RBI and a 100% subsidiary of one
of the largest housing finance companies ("HFCs") in India and a notified financial institution under
the SARFAESI Act.

Your Company focuses primarily on long-term secured mortgage-backed loans and offer loans
against property to SME businesses to the target client base of salaried and self-employed



individuals and small and medium-sized enterprises. It also offer mortgage loans to real estate
developers in India in the form of lease rental discounting for commercial premises and
construction finance for the construction of residential premises. During the year under review,
there were no changes in the nature of business of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend on the equity shares of
the Company for the financial year 2018-19. Further, the Board of Directors has paid dividend @
10% p.a. on 2,25,00,000 Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value of Rs.
10/- each aggregating to Rs. 13,53,69,863/- (Rupees Thirteen Crore Fifty Three Lakh Sixty Nine
Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty Three only, for the financial year 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-
16,2016-17,2017-18 and 2018-19.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ripudaman
Bandral (DIN: 07910257), Managing Director of the Company, retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

All the present Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the
criteria of independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh is the Company
Secretary (CS) & Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

RATING UPGRADES

Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited [ICCL], a 100% subsidiary of Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited continues to enjoy the highest long term credit rating of AAA from CRISIL, a Standard &
Poor’s company, CARE and Brickwork Ratings. During the year, ICCL has demonstrated resilience
through the liquidity crisis and had its ratings reaffirmed at the highest AAA rating.

ICCL’s subordinated debt is also rated at the highest long term credit rating of AAA by CRISIL, CARE
and Brickwork Ratings.

MERGER WITH LAKSHMI VILAS BANK

During the current financial year, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the merger of the
Company and its holding company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited with Lakshmi Vilas Bank.

Merging with a bank will give the Company access to low cost deposits and a stable liabilities base.
The merged entity will also have a wider suite of products and will be able to target a wider
customer base.

Approval for the merger has been received from the Competition Commission of India (CCI).

The merger is subject to approvals from various other regulatory and statutory bodies: Reserve
Bank of India (RBI), National Housing Bank (NHB), Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI), and
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

REGULATORY GUIDELINES



Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is the regulator for Non-Banking Financial Companies. In accordance
with this, the Company is in compliance with all regulations pertaining to Accounting Standards,
Prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, capital adequacy and
credit ratings.

BORROWINGS

The Company primarily sources funds through Term Loans, Cash Credit, Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) , Subordinate Debt and Commercial Paper (CP). The outstanding debt as on
March 31, 2019 was Rs 10,806.62 Crore as compared to Rs. 6,937.94 Crore as on March 31, 2018.

ISSUANCE OF SECURED AND UNSECURED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDS)

During the FY 2018-19, the Company has issued and allotted, by way of private placement, 10,000
Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Subordinated Debt in the nature of Debentures of face
value of Rs. 1,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs. 100 Crores and 2,000 Secured Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating Rs. 200 Crores.

Further your Company during the financial year 2018-19, successfully raised a sum of Rs. 2000
Crores by way of public issue of 2,00,00,000 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
(“NCDs”) of face value of Rs. 1,000/- each, for an amount upto Rs. 1,000 Crores (“Base Issue Size”)
with an option to retain over subscription up to Rs. 1,000 Crores for issuance of additional NCDs
aggregating upto Rs. 2,000 Crores (“Issue”).

There are no NCDs which have not been claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company after
the date on which the NCD became due for redemption.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has during the Financial Year 2018-19, increased the authorized share capital as per
the following details:

() from Rs. 85,00,00,000 divided into 6,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 135,00,00,000 divided into 11,25,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each w.e.f. May 31, 2018.

(b) from Rs. 135,00,00,000 divided into 11,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and
2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 250,00,00,000 divided into 22,75,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each w.e.f.
January 28, 2019.

(c) from Rs. 250,00,00,000 divided into 22,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and
2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 272,50,00,000 divided into 25,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each w.e.f. March
14,2019.

During the year under review, your Company has allotted 16,47,27,923 equity shares of face value
of Rs. 10/- each, to its holding company Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, on a rights issue basis
and Converted 2,25,00,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of face value Rs.10/-
each issued at a price of Rs. 90/- each (including a premium of Rs. 80/- per preference share) which
were earlier issued by it on March 26, 2013, under erstwhile the Companies Act, 1956 to its 100%
Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (IHFL), into 2,25,00,000 Equity Shares on
March 25, 2019 and has issued and allotted to IHFL, 2,25,00,000 Equity Shares of the Company of



Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs. 80/- per equity share. The paid up equity share capital of the
Company as on March 31, 2019 was Rs. 24,77,99,324.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

Upon the surrender of original physical shares certificates and request received from Holding
Company of the Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, it has converted all the shares held
in physical mode into electronic mode except the shares held by nominee shareholders of Indiabulls
Housing Finance Limited. As on today, 99.99% of the shareholding of the Company is in Demat
mode.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

(i) Registered Office:

M-62 & 63, First Floor,

Connaught Place,

New Delhi- 110 001

Email: helpdesk@indiabulls.com

Tel: 011 3025 2900, Fax: 011 3015 6901

Website: http://www.indiabullscommercialcredit.com

(ii) Corporate Office:

(a) “Indiabulls House”

448-451, Udyog Vihar, Phase V,
Gurugram - 122 016, Haryana

Tel: 0124 668 1199, Fax: 0124 668 1240

(b) “Indiabulls House”, Tower I,

17t Floor, Indiabulls Finance Centre,

S. B. Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400 013
Tel: 022 6189 1000, Fax: 022 6189 1421

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

1. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Contact Person: Mr. Krishnakant Sharma
Address: Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai -~ 400 001 (Maharashtra)

Tel: (022) 40807008; Fax: (022) 66311776
Website: http: //www.idbitrustee.co.in/

2. Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Contact Person: Mr. Vitthal Nawandhar
Address: 4C & D, Siddhivinayak Chambers,
Gandhi Nagar, Opp. MIG Club,

Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400051

Tel: 022-26558759

Fax: 022-26558761
www.beacontrustee.co.in

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

Karvy Fintech Private Limited



Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032

Tel : 040-6716 2222,

Fax: 040-23001153
https://www.karvyfintech.com/

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company being a Non Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, has not accepted any
deposits from the public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

AUDITORS

(a)

(b)

(@

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Ajay Sardana Associates (FRN: 016827N), Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No.:
016827N), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Eleventh Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 8, 2017, for a period of five years i.e. until
the conclusion of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self - explanatory and
therefore do not call for any further explanation. Also, no frauds have been reported by the
Auditors of the Company in terms of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s S. K. Hota & Associates, Company Secretaries in
practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company, for the
Financial Year 2018-19. The Company has provided all assistance, facilities, documents, records
and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit. The Report of
Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2018-19, is annexed as Annexure 1, forming part of
this Report. The Report is self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further explanation.

Cost Records

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To

the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

obtained by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2019, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have
been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the



Company, as at March 31, 2019 and the profit and loss of the company for the year ended on
that date;

c¢) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place
and were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 AND SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH THE RELEVANT RULES

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 and Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules (to the extent applicable), not elsewhere mentioned in this
Report, are as under:

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of extract of Annual Return, as on the financial year ended March 31, 2019,
pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013, in form MGT-9, are given in Annexure 2 forming part of this Report as well as available on the

website of the Company at http: //indiabullscommercialcredit.com/

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2018-19, 22 (Twenty Two) Board Meetings were convened by the Board
of Directors of the Company.



LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the FY 2018-19, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment companies.
Further, the Company, being a non-banking finance company and registered with the Reserve Bank
of India, loans given, guarantees provided and investments made by it, were not covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, no materially significant related party transaction was entered by the Company
with its Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All the related party transactions,
entered into by the Company, during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business and
on an arm’s length basis.

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes to the financial statement
which sets out related party disclosures.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance
with applicable laws and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to
ensure that responsibilities are discharged effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company is not required to use much of energy and
technology absorption, however in compliance of Section 134(3) read with Rule - 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the necessary reporting with regard to conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is an under:

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at its
work premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve energy:

a) Implementation of viable energy saving proposals.

b) Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy.

c) Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on
opportunities of energy conservation and their benefits.

B. Technology Absorption

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and
innovative technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. Next
Generation Business Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that while data
continues to grow, decision makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision
making. The Company has implemented best of the breed applications to manage and automate its
business processes to achieve higher efficiency, data integrity and data security. It has helped it in
implementing best business practices and shorter time to market new schemes, products and
customer services. The Company has taken major initiatives for improved employee experience, by



implementing innovative solutions and empowering them by providing mobile platform to manage
their work while on the go.

The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational cost
and development of new business opportunities. No technology was imported by the Company
during the last three Financial years including FY 2018-19.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review. However during the
financial year 2017-18 there was an outgo of Foreign Exchange to the tune of Rs. 0.70 Crore towards
investment in Company’s wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) at Mauritius with the name “Indiabulls
Asset Management (Mauritius).

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated
robust business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its
business objectives and enhance its competitive advantage. It defines the risk management
approach across the Company including the documentation and reporting. At present, the Company
has not identified any element of risk which may threaten its existence.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE

The information of employees of the Company, employed by the Company through the year or part
thereof, as required to be made in terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 3.

SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

The Company has only one subsidiary namely “Indiabulls Asset Management (Mauritius)” as a
wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) since Financial Year 2016-17. The statement pursuant to first
proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed Form AOC - 1 relating to Statement containing salient
features of the financial statement of subsidiary has been attached to this report and forms part of
the financial statements.

Further, your Company is not required to consolidate its Financial Statements with its subsidiary
company in terms of clause (iii) of second proviso of Rule 6 of Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES OR
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the FY 2018-19, no new company became or ceased to be subsidiary or joint venture or
associate of the Company. The Company continues to have one Subsidiary, namely, Indiabulls Asset
Management (Mauritius).



COMPLIANCES

During the year your company has complied with all applicable regulations of the Reserve Bank of
India. As per Non -Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the directors hereby report
that the company did not accept any public deposits during the year and did not have any public
deposits outstanding at the end of the year.

The Company is an Unlisted Company as its shares are not listed on any stock exchange. However,
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is considered as a Listed Company
as its Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures and Unsecured Redeemable Non-
Convertible Subordinated Debentures (NCDs) issued on private placement basis are listed on
Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Further Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures issued through Public issue are Listed
on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. Your Company has thus complied
with all the applicable Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the
Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. The
details of these committees are as under.

(A) Audit Committee
Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has a duly constituted
Audit Committee which currently comprises of three members namely Mr. Anil Malhan as the
Chairman, and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha and Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat, Independent Directors
as other two members.

Terms of reference of Audit Committee

e To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information;

e To review with management, annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and
correctness before submission to the Board;

e To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems,
approving the internal audit plans/reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function,
discussion and review of periodic audit reports including findings of internal investigations;

e Torecommend the appointment of the auditors and their remuneration;

e To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write off
decisions and regulatory requirements on Balance Sheet Disclosures.

e To hold discussions with the Auditors.

e Review and monitoring of the auditor’ independence and performance and effectiveness of the
audit process.

e Examination of the auditor’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to the

examination of the financial statements) before submission to the Board.

Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings and assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and when

such funds are raised and also reviewing the utilization of the funds so raised for purposes



other than those stated in the relevant offer document, if any and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board in this regard.

e Review and monitoring of the performance of the statutory auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process.

e To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concern

e To review the whistle blower mechanism.

e Approval to the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications ,
experience and background etc. of the candidate.

e Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess the
operational risks faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit of
internal systems and processes is conducted periodically.

Meetings during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019 the Committee met six times.
(B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has a duly constituted
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&R Committee) which currently comprises of three
members namely Mr. Anil Malhan as the Chairman, and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha and Mr. Shamsher
Singh Ahlawat, Independent Directors as other two members.

Terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

e To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of all the directors on a continuing basis.
e Toidentify & advice Board in the matter of appointment of new Director.

Meetings during the year
During the financial year ended March 31, 2019 the Committee met 2 (two) times.
Policy for selection and appointment of Directors

The (N&R Committee) has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of
the Board of Directors, senior management and their compensation. This Policy is accordingly
derived from the said Charter.

a. The incumbent for the positions of Directors and/or at senior management, shall be the
persons of high integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities,
required for the position.

b. The Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to have
the diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking,
regulatory, taxation, law, governance and general management.

¢. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the proposed
appointee vis-a-vis the Company, shall be ensured.

d. The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the incumbent, and
shall also ensure that such other criteria with regard to age and other qualification etc., as
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws are fulfilled, before
recommending to the Board, for their appointment as Directors.



e. In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance
evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.

Remuneration Policy

Company’s Remuneration Policy is market led, based on the fundamental principles of payment for
performance, for potential and for growth. It also takes into account the competitive circumstances
of the business, so as to attract and retain quality talent and leverage performance significantly. The
N&R Committee recommends the remuneration payable to the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel, for approval by Board of Directors of the Company, subject to the approval of its
shareholders, wherever necessary. Presently, no remuneration is paid to any of the Director of the
Company.

c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
Composition

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has duly
constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The current composition of CSR
Committee comprises of three members namely Mr. Anil Malhan as the Chairman, Mr. Shamsher
Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha, Independent Directors as other two members.

Terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

To recommend to the Board, the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.
To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activities.

To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements.

Meetings during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Committee met 2 (two) times.

Projects undertaken

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility”, the Company has undertaken
projects in the area of development of Indian Arts & Culture etc. as per its CSR Policy and the details
given in Annual Report on CSR Activities attached as “Annexure 4”, forming part of this Report. The
project is in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules.
d) Stakeholder relationship Committee

Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Section 178(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
duly constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee. The current composition of Stakeholder
Relationship Committee comprises of three members namely Mr. Anil Malhan as the Chairman, Mr.
Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha, Independent Directors as other two
members.

Terms of reference of Stakeholder relationship Committee

{i) to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company.



(ii) to approve requests for NCDs transfers and transmissions. .
(iii) to approve the requests pertaining to remat of NCDs/sub division/consolidation/issue of
renewed and duplicate NCDs certificates etc.

Meetings during the year
The Committee met only once during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework,
methodology and criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including Board
committee(s), as well as performance of each director(s)/Chairman. The existing parameters
includes effectiveness of the Board and its committees, decision making process, Directors/
members participation, governance, independence, quality and content of agenda papers, team
work, frequency of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture, contribution, role of the
Chairman and management of conflict of interest. On the basis of these parameters, the NRC had
reviewed at length the performance of each director individually and expressed satisfaction on the
process of evaluation and the performance of each Director. The performance evaluation of the
Board as a whole and its committees as well as the performance of each director individually,
including the Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of Directors. The performance
evaluation of the Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors in their meeting held on December 29, 2018. The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. It also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, compliance
with applicable laws and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to
ensure that responsibilities are discharged effectively.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY. AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL

HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any of its officials, which may fall
under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain
the dignity of every woman employee of the Company. The Company’s Sexual Harassment Policy
provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and
redressal of such complaints.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

i. number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil
ii. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil
ili. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year- Nil

Further, the Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to
redress complaints received, if any, regarding sexual harassment.



SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively relating to Meetings of the Board, its Committees and the
General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

VIGIL, MECHANISM

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of
its business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented the Vigil
Mechanism Policy (“the Policy”), to provide an avenue for employees to report matters without the
risk of subsequent victimization, discrimination or disadvantage. The Policy applies to all employees
working for the Company. Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns relating to
matters such as breach of Company’s Code of Conduct, fraud, bribery, corruption, employee
misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s funds / assets etc. A whistle-blowing or
reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites all employees to act responsibly to uphold the
reputation of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are
properly raised and addressed and are recognized as an enabling factor in administering good
governance practices.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism,
creativity, integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization
of all its resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your Directors wish to place on record
their appreciation of the contributions made all those who were connected with the Company, for
their support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

e \/\/s/ /, s @
- \
AjitKumar Mittal iptildaman Bandral
Place: Gurugram Non-Executive Chairman Managing Director

Date: August 1, 2019 DIN: 02698115 DIN: 07910257
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Annexure 1

FORM NO. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
M 62 & 63, First Floor, Connaught Place,
New Delhi -110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”/ “ICCL"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification and as per documents, information’s and explanations provided to us by
the Companyand on the basis of verifications of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31% March, 2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Wehave examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
recordsmaintained bythe Company for the financial year ended on 31% March,2019 according to
the provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder,;

Il.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,
IV.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Boardof India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition ofShares and
Takeovers)Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period); .

L INO.
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
EmployeeStock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008,

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing
with client (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

VL. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, the Company being
a Non- Banking Finance Company, is also governed by this Act.

VIL. Other Laws Applicable to the Company:

s Taxation Laws

< Labourand Social Security Laws-such as Employees State Insurance Act, 1948,
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ; Contract Labor (Regulation and Abolition) Act,
1970: Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, The Equal Remuneration Act 1976; Employees
Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Act, 1942 etc.

< IT Related Laws — Information Technology Act, 2000;

& Other General & Miscellaneous Laws such as Electricity Act, 2003; Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Regulation) Act,
2013 etc.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India covered under
Companies Act, 2013;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., stated herein above.



We further report that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Director, Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. Therewere
no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review.

. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through with the consent of all the Directors present in the
meeting and members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period the Company has:

1.

Enhanced the borrowing limits of the Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to Rs. 20,000 Crores at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on August 1, 2018.

Increased the authorized share capital of the Company as per following details:

(a) from Rs. 85,00,00,000 divided into 6,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and
2.25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 135,00,00,000 divided into
11,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of
Rs. 10/- each w.e.f. May 31, 2018. 5

(b) from Rs. 135,00,00,000 divided into 11,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and
2.25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 250,00,00,000 divided into
22,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of
Rs. 10/- each w.e.f January 28, 2019.

(c) from Rs. 250,00,00,000 divided into 22,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and
2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 272,50,00,000 divided into
25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, and 2,25,00,000 Preference Shares of
Rs. 10/- each w.e.f March 14, 2019.

3. Allotted 16,47,27,923 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company, to its

holding company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, on a rights issue basis.

Allotted 2,25,00,000 fully paid-up Equity Shares of the Company of Rs.10/- each to its
holding company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited,at a premium of Rs.80/- per equity
share, upon conversion of 2,25,00,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
face value Rs.10/- each, which were earlier issued-at a price of Rs.90/- each (including a
premium of Rs.80/- per preference share).









Annexure 2

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN U65923DL2006PLC150632
ii Registration Date 07/07/2006
iii Name of the Company Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares
\ Address of the Registered office M - 62 & 63, First Floor, Connaught Place, New Delhi-
& contact details 110001, Tel: 011 3025 2900, Fax: 011 3015 6901
Vi Whether listed company Yes {Only Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures and Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible.
Subordinated Debentures (NCDs) issued on Private
placement basis are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market
(WDM) segment of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited and Secured Redeemable Non -
Convertible Debentures issued through Public issue are
listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
BSE Limited}
vii Name, Address & contact details of Karvy Fintech Private Limited
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500032
Tel : 040-6716 2222, Fax: 040-23001153
il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
“All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated
SL No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Commercial Loan Activities 65923 83.58%
1] PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Si Name & Address of the CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABL
No Company SUBSIDIARY/ SHARE E
ASSOCIATE S HELD SECTION
1 Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited | L65922DL2005PLC136029 | Holding Company 100% 2(46) of the
M - 62 & 63, First Floor, Companies
Connaught Place, New Delhi- Act, 2013
110001
2 Indiabulls Asset Management Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87) of the
(Mauritius)** c/o Citco (Mauritius) Company Companies
Limited, 4th Floor, Tower A, Act, 2013
1 Cyber City Ebene, Mauritius

**Reference note missing




v

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of | - No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year chan
ge

durin

d the

year

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physic Total % of
Total al Total
Shar Share
es s

A. Promoters
(1) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a)
Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt.
c) State Govt. 0 0
d) Bodies ‘
Corporates* 0] 6,0571,401 6,05,71,401 100 | 24,77,99,300 24 | 24,77,99,324 100
e) Bank/Fl 0 0 0 0 0
) Any other 0 0 0 0 0
SUB :
TOTAL:(A) (1) 0 6,05,71,401 6,05,71,401 100 | 24,77,99,300 24 | 24,77,99,324 100 0
(2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a)NRI-
Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other
Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/Fi 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL
(A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total
Shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=
(A)(1)*+(A)2) 0 6,05,71,401 6,05,71,401 100 | 24,77,99,300 | 24 24,77,99,324 100 0
B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDI
NG
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C) Central govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Gowt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance
Companies 0
g) Flls 0 0
h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




i) Others
(specify)

SUB TOTAL
(B)(1):

(2) Non
Institutions

a) Bodies

| corporates

i) Indian

i)} Overseas

b) Individuals

o O o (o

o |0 |O |©O

o |0 (O |O
o |O |O |O

o (O [0 |O

o O |o (o

o |O |Oo |Oo

o O O o

o |0 |O |O

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs.1 lakhs

ii) Individuals
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakhs

c) Others
(specify)

SUB TOTAL
(B)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

0

6,05,71,401

6,05,71,401

100

24,77,99,300 | 24

24

,77,99,324

100

0

™ Includes 5 individual nominees holding 4 equity share each, 1 individual nominee holding 3 equity shares and 1 individual
nominee holding 1 equity share, on behalf of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (Holding Company).

(i)

Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. |Shareholders Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change
No. |Name beginning of the year end of the year in share
. holding
during
the year
No of shares (% of total |% of shares [No of shares (% of total |% of shares
shares |pledged/ shares  |pledged/
of the encumbered of the encumbered
company (to total shares company |to total
shares
Indiabulls Housing
1 |Finance Limited* 6,05,71,401 100% NIL| 24,77,99,3240 1005%|. NIL| Nil
Total 6,05,71,401 100% NIL 24,77,99,324 100% NIL Nil

*Includes 5 individual nominees holding 4 equity share each, 1 individual nominee holding 3 equity shares and 1
individual nominee holding 1 equity share, on behalf of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (Holding Company).




(iii)

Change in Promoters' Shareholding (Specify if there is no change)

Sl. No. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
beginning of the Year the year
1No. of Shares| % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 6,05,71,401 100% 6,05,71,401 100%
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters AR
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease. (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) .
At the end of the year 24,77,99,324 100% 24,77,99,324 100%
M Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Shareholding
Sl. Name Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Shareholding
No. Decrease during the year
in
shareholding
No. of Shares | % of total No. of Shares | % of total
at the shares of shares of
beginning the the
of the year Company Company
1 | Indiabulls 6,05,71,401* 100 01-Apr-18 - - - -
Housing
Finance
Limited
20-June-18 | 4,70,77,923 | Allotment 10,76,49,324 100
(Rights
Issue
Basis)
22-Feb-19 | 11,76,50,000 | Allotment 22,52,99,324 100
(Rights
Issue
Basis)
25-Mar-19 | 2,25,00,000 Allotment 24,77,99,324 100
(conversio
n of CCPS
into Equity
shares)
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-19 24,77,99,324* 100

*Includes 5 individual nominees holding 4 equity share each, 1 individual nominee holding 3 equity shares and 1 individual
nominee holding 1-equity share, on behalf of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (Holding Company).




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs &ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning

Shareholding at the end

of the year of the year
0,
Si. No For each of the Top 10 Shareholders % of total sﬁlg:etgt:fl
No. of shares | shares of the No of shares the
company company
1| NIL* NIL NIL | NIL NIL

*The entire shareholding of the Company is held by, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited along with its nominees.

(v)Shareholding of Directors & KMP

(A) Shareholding of Directors

Sl Name Shareholding Date wise Cumulative
No _Increase / Shareholding
Decrease in ,
shareholdin
g during
the year
specifying [ during the year (01-
the reasons | Apr-2018 to 31-Mar-
for increase 2019)
Date [beginning of the | No. of % of total / decrease No. of | % of total
year Shares shares of Shares shares
(01-Apr-2018) /end of the of the
the year (31-Mar-2019)] Company Company
1 Mr. Anil Malhan, 01-Apr-18 0 0 - - -
Non-Executive Director 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 0
2 | Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, 01-Apr-18 0 0 - -
Non -Executive 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 0
Chairman
3 | Mr. Shamsher Singh 01-Apr-18 0 0 - - -
Ahlawat, o
Independent Director 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 0
4 | Mr. Prem Prakash 01-Apr-18 0 0 - - -
Mirdha, Ao :
Independent Director 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 0
5 | Mrs. Priya Jain, 01-Apr-18 0 0 - -
Non-Executive Director 31-Mar-19 0 0 i 0 0
6 | Mr. Ripudaman Bandral, 01-Apr-18 0 0 - -
Managing Director 31-Mar-19 0 0 Z 0 0




(B) Shareholding of KMP

Date wise Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholding Increase / during the year (01-Apr-
.| 2018 to 31-Mar-2019)
Sl Decrease in
No. Date [beginning shareholding
Name of the year d’uring the
(01-Apr-2018) | No. of % of total year No. of % of total
lend of the Shares shares of specifying Shares shares
: year the the reasons of the
(31-Mar-2019)] Company for increase / Company
decrease
4 | Mr. Ashish Kumar Jain, 01-Apr-18 0 0 i - -
CFO 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 .0
5 | Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, 01-Apr-18 0 0 ) - -
Company Secretary 31-Mar-19 0 0 0 0

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Amount (In Crore)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
. Unsecured ; Total
excluding L Deposits Indebted

Indebtedness at the beginning of deposits oans , ndebtedness
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 4,377.00 2,556.63 - 6,933.63
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due 22.50 422 - 26.72
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,399.50 2,560.85 - 6,960.35
Ch'angé in Indebtedness during the

_financial year
Additions 3,971.62 20.53 - 3,992.15
Reduction - - - -
Net Change 3,971.62 20.53 - 3,992.15
Indebtedness at the end of the ' )
financial year
i) Principal Amount 8,326.06 2,480.56 10806.62
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due 45.06 100.82 - 145.88

- Total (i+ii+iii) 8,371.12 2,581.38 - 10,952.50




Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager

Total Amount (In

Sl. No | Particulars of Remuneration Name of the
MD/WTD/Manager Rs.)
1 Gross salary Mr. Ripudaman Bandral,
Managing Director
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 1.74.69 301 1.74 69 301
17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. s o
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income
tax Act, 1961* 57,353 57,353
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 ) )
2 Stock option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission as % of profit/others (specify) . -
-5 Others, please specify
‘Total (A) 1,75,26,654 1,75,26,654
Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 51.95 crore (being 10% of the net profits of the
Company calculated as per Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

* Excludes value of perquisites on exercise of stock options.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl No Particulars of Remuneration Total
1 Independent Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha Amount
Directors (InRs.)
(a) Fee for attending Nil Nil Nil
board/ committee
meetings
(b) Commission Nil Nil Nil
(c ) Others, please Nil Nil Nil
specify
Total (1) Nil Nil Nil
2 Other Non-Executive Mr. Ajit Kumar Mr. Anil Mrs. Priya Jain -
Directors Mittal Malhan
(a) Fee for attending Nil Nil Nil Nil
board/ committee
meetings
(b) Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c ) Others, please Nil Nil Nil Nil
specify ‘
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil- Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Managerial Nil Nil Nil Nil
Remuneration
Ceiling as per the Act | Rs. 51.95 (being 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198
of the Companies Act, 2013)




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Total
1 Gross Salary CEO, Not Mr. Ajit Kumar Singh, Mr. Ashish Kumar Amount (In
applicable Company Jain, CFO Rs.)
Secretary
(a) Salary as per NA 27,38,400 67,43,232 94,81,632

provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
income Tax Act, 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites NA 5,250 4,90,929 4,96,179
u/s 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961*

(¢ ) Profits in lieu of NA - - -
salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option NA - - -
3 Sweat Equity NA 3 . -
o NA - i -
4 Commission as % of
profit/others (specify)
Others, please specify NA - - -
5
Total 27,43,650 72,34,161 99,77,811

* Excludes value of perquisites on exercise of stock options.
Vi PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

During the year under review, the Company, its directors or any of its officers were not liable for any penalty, punishment or
any compounding of offences under the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
i » L\J\; L/%)
A~ 4
o {
jit Kumar Mittal kié‘%daman Bandral

Place: Gurugram Non-Executive Chairman Managing Director
Date: August 1, 2019 DIN : 02698115 DIN : 07910257



Annexure 3

DETAILS REGARDING REMUNERATION TO THE EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATIONOF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 AS AMENDED

(A) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees

SL. | Name Designation | Remun- Nature of Qualifications | Date of The age of such | The last The Whether
No. of the eration employment, and commence- employee employment held | percentage | any such
employee received whether experience of | ment of by such employee | of equity employee is
contractual or the employee employment before joining the | shares held | a relative of
otherwise company by the any director
employee or manager
in the of the
company company
within the and if so,
meaning of | name of
clause (iii) such
of sub-rule | director or
(2) above manager
N.A | N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

(B) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in
and fifty thousand rupees per month

the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh

SL. | Name Designation of | Remuneration Nature of Qualifications Date of The age of | The last The Whether
No. the employee received employment, | and experience commencement | such employment held | percentage | any such
whether of the employee | of employment | employee by such employee | of equity employee is
contractual or before joining the | shares held | arelative of
otherwise company by the any director
employee or manager
in the of the
company company
within the and if so,
meaning of | name of
clause (iii) | such
of sub-rule | director or
(2) above manager
1. Ripuda- Managing 18,307,350.08 | Permanent Master of 01/08/2017 45 Indiabulls
man Director Finance & Housing Finance | Nil No
Bandral Control/ 25 Ltd




(C) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse
and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company

SL. | Name Designation of | Remune | Nature of Qualifications and | Date of The age of | The last The Whether
No. the employee ration employment, experience of the commencement | such employment held | percentage | any such
received | whether employee of employment | employee by such employee | of equity employee is
contractual or before joining the | shares held | a relative of
otherwise company by the any director
employee or manager
in the of the
company company
within the and if so,
meaning of | name of
clause (iii) such
of sub-rule | director or
(2) above manager
N.A | N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
(D) The names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the Financial Year 2018-19
SL. | Name Designation of | Remuneration Nature of Qualifications Date of The age | The last The Whether
No. the employee received employmen | and experience of | commencement | of such employment held | percentage | any such
t, whether the employee of employment | employe | by such employee | of equity employee is
contractual e before joining the | shares held | arelative of
or company by the any director
otherwise employee or manager
in the of the
company company
within the and if so,
meaning of | name of
clause (iii) | such
of sub-rule | director or
(2) above manager
Ripuda- Managing Master of Indiabulls
1. man Director 18,307,350.08 Permanent Finance & 01/08/2017 45 Housing Finance Nil No
Bandral Control/25 Ltd
o | Ashish - Chief Financial | 773604896 | Ppermanent CA 01/05./016 40 JC Bhalla Co Nil No
Kumar Jain Officer
Rakesh . Standard _
3. National Sales 6,675,141.03 Permanent B.Com 01/07/2018 45 Chartered Bank Nil No
Bhagat Head Ltd




Shadaan Parsvnath
4, General 5,042,089.43 Permanent Professional 01/11/2017 41 Developers Nil No
Khan o
Manager Limited
5. | Pankaj | Senior General | 4415597601 | permanent CA 01/08/2017 44 Kotak Mahindra Nil No
Kumar Jain Manager Bank Ltd
Citifinancial
Pratham Head — FCU, Consumer .
6. Saksena Risk and 4,150,969.88 Permanent B Com 01/08/2017 43 Finance India Nil No
Compliance Limited
Graduation from
Welcom Group
Robin Head - Graduate School Mobi.nners Pvt .
7. Marwaha Operations 4,134,736.17 Permanent of Hotel 01/08./017 50 Ltd Nil No
Administration
(WGSHA)
Amit National Magma Fincor
8. Collection 3,646,833.03 Permanent MBA 10/06/2014 43 9 P Nil No
Sangwan Ltd.
Manager
o, | Ravindra | Deputy General | 5 5o5 03000 | permanent B.Sc 01/09/2013 37 L &T Finance Nil No
Gupta Manager Limited
MMS Head — Dicetech L.I.C.
10. Imran Information 3,128,087.46 | Permanent | MA Economics | 01/08/2017 a4 Work Place Nil No
Hussain Technolo Emirates NBD
Choudhury 9y Bank
Notes: -

1. Remuneration includes salary, bonus, incentive, house rent allowance, supplementary allowance, Transport allowance, Medical allowance, leave travel allowance, and

other allowance paid in cash.

2. Other Terms and Conditions: All appointments are/were in accordance with the terms and conditions as per applicable Rules and Policy of the Company




A‘nn‘exure-4
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs,
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or
programs. :

The Company focuses its CSR efforts on such areas, where it could provide maximum benefits to the
society at large. These are, improving awareness of communities towards Arts and Cultural
Development etc. The Company will continue to engage with stakeholders including experts, NGOs,
professional bodies / forums and the government and would take up such CSR activities in line with the
government’s intent, which are important for the society at large. The Company may also undertake
such other CSR projects, where societal needs are high or in special situations (natural disasters etc.)

CSR Policy is stated herein below:

Web-link: http:/ zindiabullscommeréialcredit.com[

Composition of the CSR Committee

Mr. Anil Malhan (Chairman)

Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat (Independent Director)
Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha (Independent Director)

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 200,70,47,833.00/-

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percént of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 4,01,40,956.66/-.

Details of CSR spend for the financial year:

a. Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 4,01,41,000.00/-

b. Amount unspent, if any: Nil

¢. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Amount ) Amount
. . , Projects or Programs Outlay Amount Spent on Cumulative | Spent Direct
CSR project Sector in which (Budget) . .
Sr. L7, L N Project or Expenditure or through
or activity the project is Project . .
No. , . Programs Sub up to 31st implementin
identified covered or Heads: March 2019
: DiStriCt State Program eads: arc g agency
s-wise
Development Implementing
1 of Indian Arts Arts & Cultural PAI.\I PAN India 40,141,0 _ Ag'ency
Development India 00 (Indiabulls
& Culture .
Foundation)
40,141,0 ) )
Total 00

*Indiabulls Foundation is a registered Trust.




6.

7.

In case the Company has failed to spend the tweo percent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in Board'’s report.

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has contributed its entire CSR expenditure aggregating
to Rs.40,141,000/- to the corpus of Indiabulls Foundation, for undertaking CSR projects, on its behalf.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The Company understands that for it to continue to prosper over the long term, the community,
environment and society at large must also prosper. During the financial year 2018-19, the
implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy of the Company were environmental friendly and in
compliance with the applicable laws, CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For Indiabulls Commercial Credit Lfmited

wa\“% Ar:?!:f‘m% |

Place: Gurugram Prem Prakash Mirdha .
Date: August 1, 2019 Director& Member-CSR Committee Director & Chairman-CSR Committee



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and
its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report — ICCL — March 31, 2019 Page 1 of 11
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

a) Transition to Ind AS
(Refer note 42 to the Ind AS financial
statements)

The Company has adopted Ind AS from April
1, 2018 with an effective date of April 1, 2017
for such transition in accordance with the
requirements notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in respect of non-banking
financial companies (NBFCs).

In order to give effect of the transition to Ind AS
these financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2019, together with the comparative
financial information for the previous year
ended March 31, 2018 and the balance sheet as
at April 1, 2017, being the transition date, have
been prepared under Ind AS. For reporting
periods up to and including the year ended
March 31, 2018, the Company had prepared and
presented its financial statements in accordance
with the erstwhile generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).

The Company has made significant changes in
its policies and processes relating to financial
reporting, including generation of reliable and
supportable information, in light of the
transition to Ind AS. The management of the
Company has also exercised significant
judgement for giving an appropriate effect of
the first-time adoption principles of Ind AS 101,
as at transition date and to determine the impact
of the new accounting framework on certain
accounting and disclosure requirements
prescribed under extant Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) directions.

This was a key audit matter during our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements, due to the
complexity involved and the resultant risk of
material misstatement, of one or more periods
presented in these Ind AS financials statements,
arising from an error or omission in appropriate
implementation of the principles of Ind AS in
respect of the transition.

Principal Audit Procedures

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process to identify accounting areas impacted by
transition to Ind AS.

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
financial statement close process especially with
respect to internal controls established by the
Company for transition to Ind AS.

Evaluated changes in accounting policies in view
of the adoption of Ind AS reporting framework.

Assessed judgements applied by the Company in
application of first time adoption principles of
Ind AS 101, especially in respect of areas where
the accounting treatment adopted or the
disclosures made under the new accounting
framework were inconsistent with the extant RB]
directions.

Assessed the judgement applied by the Company
in determining its business model for
classification of financial assets.

Performed test of details on the accounting
adjustments posted as at the transition date and
in respect of the previous reporting periods in
respect of transition from Indian GAAP to Ind
AS.

Assessed disclosures made in the Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 101, with respect to the
previous periods presented.

i
Independent auditor’s report ~ ICCL — March 31, 2019/ 57/

Page 2 of 11

3
[ \; e
LN




b) Impairment of financial assets (expected
credit loss - ECL)

(Refer note 7 to the Ind AS financial
statements)

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS
109, the Company is required to provide for
impairment of its financial assets using the
expected credit loss (‘ECL’) approach which
involves an estimation of the probability of loss
on the financial assets over their life,
considering  reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality
of the Company’s loans and advances. This
process requires a significant degree of
judgement to be applied by the management in
respect of following matters, in respect of the
Company’s loan portfolio:

(i) Classification of loan portfolio into stages
and estimation of behavioral life.

(ii) Estimation of losses in respect of those
classes of loans which had no or minimal
historical defaults.

(iii) Management overlay for macro-economic
factors and estimation of their impact on the
credit quality of the loans.

The Company has developed a financial model
that derives key assumptions used within the
provision calculation such as probability of
default (PD) and loss given default (LGD). The
output of such model is then applied to the
calculation for the provision for expected credit
loss calculation with other information
including the exposure at default (EAD).

Principal Audit Procedures

»  We assessed the Company’s accounting policies
for the process of estimation of impairment of
financial assets and whether such policy was in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109.

» [Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s
assumptions used by the Company for grouping
and staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets and their
appropriateness for determining the probability
of default (PD) and loss-given default (LLGD)
rates.

e Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls
for staging of loans based on their past-due
status. We also tested a sample of stage 1 and
Stage 2 loans to assess whether any indicators
were present which suggested the classification
of such loans under stage 2 or 3.

e Performed tests (on sample basis) to verify the
completeness and accuracy of the input data used
to determie the PD and LGD rates and agreed
such data with the underlying books of accounts
and records.

e Tested the arithmetical accuracy of calculation
of the provision for ECL performed by the
Company.

* Assessed the disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements in respect of provision for ECL in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109
and Ind AS 107.

¢) De-recognition of financial assets
(Refer Note 7 to the Ind AS financial
statements) ‘

The Company has, during the year ended March
31, 2019, assigned loans amounting to
Rs.1,861.03 crores for managing its funding
requirements and recorded net income of
Rs.96.36 crores. In accordance with Ind AS
109, de-recognition of financial assets (loans)
transferred by the Company through
assignment is based on the ‘risk and reward’

Principal audit procedures

* Assessed (on sample basis) assignment agreements
to evaluate whether the de-recognition criteria have
been met.

* Assessed the significant estimates and judgments,
including the discount rate and expected remaining
life of the portfolio transferred used by the Company

/ o)
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model and a ‘control’ model. In case de- | for computation of excess interest spread receivable,
recognition criteria are met, the financial assets | servicing asset and servicing liability.

assigned are de-recognized and difference
between carrying value and consideration | < Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
including the present value of interest payments | the excess interest spread receivable, servicing asset
that it would not give up (excess interest spread | and servicing liability.

(EIS) receivable) is recognized as income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. * Assessed the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements with respect to de-recognition in
The Company also records a servicing asset and | accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109 and
servicing liability at their fair value for the right | Ind AS 107.

retained for servicing the financial asset for the
service contract and the related costs to be
incurred.

The assessment of derecognition criteria being
met involves significant judgements and
furthermore the measurement of the related E1S
receivable income, servicing asset and liability
requires significant estimates to be made with
respect to the discount rate, expected portfolio
life, prepayment and foreclosures. Given the
complexity and the volume of such transactions
the same has been considered a key audit matter
during our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the Ind AS Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

o
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

() In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid /provided by the Company to its directors during the year ended March

31, 2019 is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V
to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There here were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Independent auditor’s report — ICCL— March 31, 2019

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 016827N
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (formerly Indiabulls Infrastructure Credit Limited) for
the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the statement of matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

()
(2)

(b)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

Independent auditor’s report — ICCL~ March 31, 201

In respect of its Fixed Assets:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

Certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals in accordance with the Company’s programme of physical verification of fixed
assets in a phased manner. According to the information and explanation given to us, no
materia] discrepancies were identified on such verification;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve any inventories; and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the
grant of loans, making investments, providing guarantees and securities, to the extent
applicable to it.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (v) are not applicable to the Company.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under 3 (vi)
pertaining to the maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company.

"(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally

regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities, to the extent applicable. There are no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues outstanding as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have

any dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or
value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks and
dues to debenture holders. The Company did not have any dues in respect of loans or
borrowing from the Government.

(ix)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to.us, money raised
by way of public issue of debt instruments and term loans have been applied by the
Company during the year for the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary
deployment pending application of proceeds.

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers/ employees has been noticed or reported
during the year;

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid /provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals

mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) are
not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and the details have been disclosed in Note
40 to the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Ind AS and the Act.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is engaged in the
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution as defined under section 45-IA of Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (“RBI Act”) and is duly registered under section 45-1A of the RBI
Act, holding certificate of registration (CoR) as a Non-Banking Financial Institution
without accepting public deposits under section 45-IA of the said RBI Act.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N
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{ G| WLW e = Rahtf Mukhi
NG o/ Partner

—__” ’fMembex rship No.099719
* _New Delhi. April 24,2019
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements ’
of Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (formerly Indiabulls Infrastructure Credit Limited) for
the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited (formerly Indiabulls Infrastructure Credit Limited) (‘the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstratlon Naq, 016827N

A4

Rahul Mukhi
) Partner
el f""Membership No0.099719

New Delhi, April 24, 2019
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Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 488.16 267.71 177.93
Ban'k balances other than cash and cash 5 5253 30.25 19.50
equivalents
Loans 7 15,749.83 7.789.61 3,504.51
Investments 8 417.22 178.00 137.68
Other financial assets 9 225.03 169.90 26.09
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 101.51 38.23 28.87
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 - 17.25 13.54
Property, plant and equipment 1 8.61 6.59 7.88
Other intangible assets 1 3.77 6.23 8.69
Other non- financial assets 12 59.17 7.25 4.68
TOTAL ASSETS 17,105.83 8,511.02 3,929.37
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial fiabilities
Derivative financial instruments 13 - 17.40 1.22
Trade payables 14
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - -
and small enterprises
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than 5.15 0.21 0.12
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 15 221522 2,584.47 1,489.55
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 8,247 .44 4,102.06 1,309.00
Subordinated fiabilities 17 343.96 247.10 -
Other financial liabilities 18 1,877.01 216.28 333.76
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) 10.00 4516 0.83
Provisions 19 8.21 16.13 13.24
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 10 5.82 - -
Other non-financial liabilities 20 17.97 9.83 9.84
Equity
Equity share capital 21 247.80 60.57 42.83
Preference share capital 22 - 22.50 22.50
Other equity 23 4,127.25 1,189.31 706.68
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 17,105.83 8,511.02 3,929.37
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-54
As per our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants indiabulis Commercial Credit Limited
Firm Re%on No0.016827
s o
Rahut Mukhi Ripuga Bandral Anil Malhan

Partner

Managing Director
DIN : 07910257
Mumbai, Aprit 24, 2019

R
i
Ashish iar.dain

Chief Fin. al Officer
Mumbai, Aprif 24, 2019 |

Non Executive Director

DIN : 015426486




Indiabuils Commerciat Credit Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Amount Rs. in crores

. Notes Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from operations
Interest income 24 1.471.45 636.58
Dividend income 25 101.02 83.89
Fees and commission income 26 123.52 138.66
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised
cost category 63.92 68.93
Total revenue from operations 1,759.91 928.06
Other income 27 0.69 0.05
Total income 1,760.60 928.11
Expenses
Finance costs 28 826.80 360.85
Net loss on fair value changes 29 70.40 73.40
Impairment on financial instruments 30 364.41 49.93
Employee benefits expense 31 32.17 31.34
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1" 5.06 4.53
Other expenses 32 14.48 8.85
Total expenses 1,313.32 528.90
Profit before tax 447.28 399.21
Tax expense: 33
(1) Current tax 110.71 124,97
(2) Deferred tax 13.57 5.68
Profit for the year 323.00 268.56
Other comprehensive income
A (i} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 0.10 (0.09)
(b) Gain/(loss) on change in fair value of derivative designated at FVOCI 27.08 (26.79)
(if) income tax impact on above (9.50) 9.39
B (i} ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income tax impact on above - -
Other comprehensive income {A+B) 17.68 {17.49)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 340.68 251.07
Earnings per equity share 41
Basic (Rs.) 29.16 57.65
Diluted (Rs.) 24.46 39.10
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-54
As per our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Firm Regis{ration N0.016827N

+ R
Rahut Mukhi i Anil Malhan
Partner Managing Director Non Executive Director
Membership No. 0997 DIN : 07910257 DIN : 01542646 P
New Delhi, April 24, 20 Mumbai, Aprit 24, 2019 P
Ajit Kumar Sin

.« Company Secretary




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
Amount Rs. in crores

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

A Cash flow from operating activities :

Profit before tax 44728 399.21.
Adjustment for:
Provision for gratuity 0.65 0.49
Provision for compensated absences 0.03 0.06
Share based paymentls {o employees 2.03 1.73
ECL on loan assets 179.04 3.77
interest expenses 676.65 29585
interest income (1,535.37) (706.93)
Deemed cost of fair value of corporate guarantee 1.47 -
Balances written back (0.02) {0.04)
Dividend income {101.02) -
Unrealised gain on mutual fund invesiments (current investments) (net) (2.75) (3.83)

Depreciation and amorlisation 5.06 4.53

Operating profit/ {loss} before working capital changes (326.95) {5.16)
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Other financial assets 101.39 (50.87)
Other non financial assets (12.06) -
Loans (8,129.03) (4,304.38)
Trade payables 4.94 0.09
Other financiat liabilities 1,535.40 (175.23)
Other non financial fiabilities 8.14 -
Net cash {used in) operations (6,818.17) (4,535.55)
Interest received 1,382.93 649.21
Interest paid (538.77) (271.80)
Income tax paid(net) (209.15) (89.80)
Net cash {used in) operating activities {6,183.16}) (4,247.94)
8 Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of properly, plant and equipment (4.62) (0.78)
Movement in capital advances 0.29 (0.46)
investment in fixed deposits with banks (22.28) (10.75)
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary company {0.70) {0.65)
Dividend income 101.02 -

Interest received 1.57 1.30

vy
s
Ashish Kum
Chief Financial Gfficer
Mumbai, Aprit 24) 2019

Investments in mutual funds / other investments (net) (235.77) (35.85)
Net cash {used in) investing activities (160.49) (47.19)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equily shares (including securities premium) 2,723.36 249.83
Distribution of preference dividend (13.54) -
{Repayment of)/proceeds from loan taken from feliow subsidiary company {net} (14.53) 4.10
Proceeds from foan taken from holding company{net) 167.00 80.00
Proceeds from issue of secured redeemable non-converiible debentures 1,927.48 249.93
Proceeds from issue of subordinate debt 90.83 247.10
{(Repayment of} /proceeds from commercial papers(net) (2,295.00) 845.00
Proceeds from working capital loans(net) 2,108.01 51.41
Proceeds from bank loans and others {net) 1,870.49 2,657.54
Net cash from financing activities 6,564.10 4,384.91
D Netincrease /{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents { A+B+C} 220.45 89.78
E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 267.71 177.93
F Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year { D + E } Referhores 488.16 267.71
Notes forming parl of the financial statements 1-54
As per our reporl of even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants Indiabulls Commercial C;;eﬂTﬂ‘_'}miled
Firm Registration No.016827N
- # "
Rahul RipMﬂandral Anil Malhan
Partlner A Managing Director Non Executive Director
Membership No. 099719 DIN : 07910257
New Delhi, April 24, 2019~~~ Mumbai, April 24, 2019



indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Equity Share Capital:

Numbers

Amount Rs. in
crores

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 01, 2017

4,28,26,288

42.83

Addition during the year

1,77,45,113

17.74

At March 31, 2018

6,06,71,401

60.57

Addition during the year

18,72,27,923

187.23

At March 31, 2019

24,77,99,324

247.80

Qther Equity

Amount Rs. in crores

Reserves & Surplus

Other
Comprehensive
income

Capital
Reserve

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Securities
Premium Account

Special Reserve

Urs 38(1){viii) of

the Income Tax
Act, 1961

{Reserve fund u/s
45-IC of the R.B.I.

Reserve (i)

Act, 1934)

Debenture
Redemption
Reserve

Share based
Payment
reserve

Fair value of
corporate
guarantee

Retained earnings

Cash flow hedge
reserve

Total

At April 01, 2017

0.17

4.00

458.69

87.72

124.14

{0.18}

706.68

Profit for the year

32.14

268.56

268.56

Other Comprehensive
income/(loss)

(0.08)

(17.43)

(17.49)

Total comprehensive
income

268.50

(17.43)

251.07

Add: Transferred /
Addition during the year

10.77

50.98

1.73

63.48

Add: Additions during the
year on account of issue
of shares

23225

232.25

Less : Share issue

(0.17)

(0.17)

expenses
Appropriations:-

Provision for Dividend on
Preference Shares

(2.25)

(2.25)

Transferred to Special
Reserve ufs 36(1)(viii) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

(10.77)

(10.77)

Transferred to Reserve
Fund u/s 45-1C of the
R.B.l. Act, 1934

(50.98)

(50.98)

Total Appropriations

{64.00)

(64.00)

At March 31, 2018

0.17

4.00

680,77

42.91

138.70

1.73

328.84

{17.61)

1,189.31




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Statament of changes in squity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Reserves & Surplus

Other
Comprehensive
Income

Capitat
Reserve

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Securities
Premium Account

Special Reserve

U/s 36(1){viii} of

the Income Tax
Act, 1961

Reseorve (i)
(Reserve fund u/s
46-1C of the R.B.L

Act, 1934)

Debenture
Redemption
Reserve

Share based
Payment
reserve

Fair value of
corporate
guarantee

Retained earnings

Cash flow hedge
reserve

Total

At March 31, 2018

0.17

4.00

42,91

138.70

1.73

328.64

(17.81)

1,189.31

Profit for the year

680,77

J23.00

323.00

Other Comprehensive
Income

0.06

17.62

17.68

Total comprehensive
income

323.06

17.62

340.68

Add: Transferred /
Addilion during the year

43.74

64.60

83.83

2.03

41.63

235.83

Add: Additions during the
year on account of issue
of shares

2,560.32

2,560.32

Less : Share issue

(1.69)

(1.69)

expenses
Appropriations:-

Corporate Dividend Tax
on Dividend paid on
Preference Shares

(2.78)

(2.78)

Provision for Dividend on
Preference Shares

(2.25)

(2.25)

Transferred {o Special
Reserve ufs 36(1)(viii) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

(43.74)

(43.74)

Transferred to Reserve
Fund u/s 45-IC of the
R.B.I. Act, 1934

(64.60)

(64.60)

Transferred to Debenture
Redemption Reserve

(83.83)

(83.83)

Total Appropriations

(197.20)

(157.20)

At March 31, 2019

0.17

4.00

3,249.40

86.65

203.30

83.83

3.76

41.63

454.50

0.01

4,127.25

Notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date.

For Ajay Sardana Associates

Chartered Accountants

.

Rahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No, 099719
New Delhi, April 24, 2019

o

Firm R&g%atign NO.016827N 0y )

e
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

v o

Ripudg
Managing Director
DIN: 07910257

Bandral

Mumbai, April 24, 2018

-
i/
-X(}.
Ashish Kumar_Jg#

Chief Financiai Gfficer
Mumbai, April 24,2019

i Company Sed

Anil Malhan
Non Executive Director
DIN : 01542646
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indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Corporate information
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (‘the Company”) "ICCL" was incorporated on July 07, 2006 and is engaged in the business of financing, investment and allied activities. On February 12, 2008, the

Company was registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the business of a Non Banking Financial Company but does not have permission from the Reserve Bank

of India to accept public deposits.

In accordance with the provisions of section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, the members of the company at their
Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 02, 2015, accorded their approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon
change of name from the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana dated March 12, 2015, in respect of the said change. Accordingly, the name of the Company was
changed from Indiabulls Infrastructure Credit Limited to indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited.

In accordance with the approval of the members of the Company, at their Extraordinary general meeting held on June 12, 2015 and of the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Dethi &
Haryana, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made thereunder, new set of Memorandum of
Association (MOA) of the Company in accordance with Table A of Schedule | of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia modifying sub clause 5 of the erstwhile main object of the MOA, as reproduced below,

be and is hereby adopted as follows:

"To act as financial consultants, investment, marketing and management consultants/advisors and provide consultancy in various fields including general administrative, secretarial, managerial,
commercial, banking, financial, economic, public relation, personal and corporate finance and direct and indirect taxation and other levies".

The Board of Directors of Indiabulls Finance Company Private Limited ("IFCPL"} and the Company at their meeting held on April 16, 2015 had approved, the Scheme of Arrangement, involving the
merger of IFCPL, on an ongoing basis, into the Company, pursuant to and in terms of the provisions of Section 391 — 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time (“Scheme of
Arrangement”). The appointed date of the proposed merger fixed under the Scheme of Arrangement was April 01, 2015. The Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, vide its order dated March 15, 2016, received
by the Company on March 31, 2016, approved the Scheme of Arrangement (Qrder). in terms of the court approved Scheme of Arrangement, with the filing of the copy of the Order, on March 31, 2016
with the office of ROC. NCT of Delhi & Haryana (the Effective Date}, the Scheme of Arrangement came into effect and IFCPL, as a going concern, stands amalgamated with the Company with effect
from the Appointed Date, being April 01, 2015 (in accordance with AS-14-Accounting for Amalgamations, under the Pooling of Interests Method). Consequent to the Scheme of Arrangement becoming
effective, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on March 31, 2016, issued and allotted 32,826,288 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of the Company to the Equity Share Holders of
IFCPL, against their share holding in such equity shares as on March 31, 2016. The issue of equity shares by the Company in the ratio of 3:1, was in terms of the Share Exchange Ratio as mentioned in

the Court approved Scheme of Arrangement.

Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Basis of preparation
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 (as amended from time to time).

For all periods up to and inciuding the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCY) instruments, derivative financial instruments, other

financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. Further the carrying values of
recognised assets and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and otherwise carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair value attributable to the risks that are being

hedged.

(i) Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and
addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognise
following circumstances:

A. The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties.

financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in
d amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Significant accounting policies

3.1 _Use of estimates
The preparation of Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future

periods.

A. Impairment loss on financial assets
The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets except assets vaiued at FVTPL, enquires judgement, in parti

flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimate
result in different levels of allowances.

cular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
s are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

« The Company’s mode!, which assigns Probability of Defaults (PDs)
- The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a Lon
+ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
. Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and the effect on PDs, Exposure at Defauit (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs)

. Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

g Term ECL (LTECL) basis

B. Business Model Assumption
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business mode! test. The Company determines the business model! at a level that reflects how groups of

financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are de-recognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

C. Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fu
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are r

employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
ture. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
eviewed at each reporting date.

D. Share Based Payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions re
also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to th

quires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
e valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

E. Fair value measurement
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation

techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

instruments.

F. Effective interest rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income using a rate of return that represen

recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages and other characteristics o

egarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to the company's base rate and other fee income/
A

ts the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans and
f the product life cycle. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement
‘expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

7° Cash and cash equivalents

i ésg;i' and cash equivatent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account.



indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3.3 Recognition of income and expense

a) Interestincome
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably

measured. Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR). The effective interest method calculates the amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integrai part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is,
therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3', the Company calculates the interest to the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest

income,

b) Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These

include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external legal costs. provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

c) Other charges and other interest
Additional interest is recognized when the interest is due and charged to the borrower. Overdue interest is recognised on realization basis.

e} Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits asscociated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

3.4 Foreign currency
The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's functionat currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on
settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
st in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured

xchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary iterns measured at fair
ir value gain or loss is recognized in OC1 or profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical co:
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the e
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the itemn (i.e., translation differences on items whose fa

are also recognized in OCl or profit or loss. respectively).

3.5 Operating Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership o
payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected gener.
recognized as per terms of the lease agreement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

f an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognized as operating leases. The Company has ascertained that the
al inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases and therefore, the lease payments are

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to it
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company an
incurred.

to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
s working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is
d the cost of itern can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when

posal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or

~An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon dis
is included in the statement of profit and loss when the

,?os\s arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
»(fé\'s_'s,et is derecognised.

i
L !
i I}g}g‘ngible fixed assets
;’AAg"tangibIe assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition a
.~ “impairment losses.

-

t cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
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3.7 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, except for Vehicles.

Vehicles are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of five years from the date when the assets are available for use. The life has been assessed based on past usage experience and
considering the change in technology.

Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is put to use. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of Lease. Depreciation on sale /
deduction from fixed assets is provided for up to the date of sale / deduction, as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Amortization
Intangible assets consisting of Software are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of four years from the date when the assets are available for use.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for these softwares with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted 'to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

3.9 Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a

reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. Contingent liability is disclosed for (1) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (2) Present obligations arising
from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are

not recognised in the financial statements.

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the

provident fund and Employee State Insurance scheme. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund and Employee State Insurance scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company has unfunded defined benefit plans Gratuity plan for all eligible employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end. Separate actuarial
valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Superannuation (Pension & Medical coverage) payable to a Director on retirement is also actuarially valued at the end of the

year using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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3.11 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with income tax Act, 1961, Income

Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which during the specified period gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered
as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic

benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that

future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

3.12 Earning per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitied to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during

the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Share based payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

settied share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
d, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to

instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting perio

vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.
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3.14 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

3.14.1 Financial Assets

3.14.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring them. All financial assets are recognised initiafly at fair vatue plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or

loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the acouisition of the financial asset.

3.14.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
« Debt instruments at amortised cost

« Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

. Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

3.14.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

+ The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, where the Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash
flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Company’s objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!). If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part

of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI- Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at amortized cost) or to collect contractual cash flows and sell (i.e. measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPP! test). In making this assessment, the
Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

mortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at a
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The

into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14.1.4 Debt instruments at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value changes re

cash flows represent SPPL.

lating to market movements selling the financial assets, and The asset's contractual

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCl). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

3.14.1.5 Debt instruments at FVTPL
~FVTPL is a residual category for
SENMTPL.

\@o\

an \rCatdition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or F
”{‘ c,ﬁf;)‘ so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’), Deb
L5 with all changes recognized in the P&L.

S
o

debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at

VTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if
t instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
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3.14.1.6 Equity Investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make

an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The

classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no

recycling of the amounts from OC! to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
3.14.2 Financial Liabilities

3.14.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All

financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

3.14.2.2 Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities

are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

3.14.3 Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivatives to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures as well as interest fluctuations. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives that are not designated a hedge are categorized as financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and
attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or

loss and the resulting gains or losses are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.14.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The company doesn't reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or

terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
3.14.5 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.14.5.1 Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simitar financial assets) is de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset

have expired. The Company also de-recognised the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer quaiifies for de recognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if. and only if, either:

. It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset

Or
« It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual recipients’), when all of the following three conditions are met:
The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery

the-amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

p;

e 'é&‘@mpany cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

. The“\(;\if;m’pany has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.
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In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and
the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Or
« The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained contro! of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
the Company could be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the value the Company would be
required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the

transferred asset and the option exercise price.

3.14.5.2 Financial Liabilities
A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

3.15 Impairment of financial assets

3.15.1 Overview of the ECL principles
The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit fosses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee

contracts, (in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IND AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), uniess there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that resuit from defauit events

on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and -12mECLs are calculated on individual and collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has established a
policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 : When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans aiso include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the compan
risk has improved and the ioan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3; Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

y records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit
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3.15.2 The calculation of ECLs
The Company caiculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the

difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
- PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may
only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

+ EAD - The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a default date.
. LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a defauit occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that

the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.
The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below.
Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting

date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are
applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The
ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the

loan.
For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that resuit from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting

date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are
applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an aliowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLS for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The
ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the

loan.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

3.15.3 Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if

there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the
Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be aiways reflective of such relationships, temporary overiays are embedded in the

NG

3.45,4 Write-offs
cd Finangial assets ar
I%X/ nce, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carry

e written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. if the amount to be written off is greater than the accumuiated loss
ing amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss account.
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3.16 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation technigues.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principat or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3.17 Dividend
The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on

shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

3.18 Hedging
The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage expo

transactions that meet specified criteria.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management

objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the expasure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

sures to interest rate and foreign currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for

3.18.1 Fair value hedges
Fair value hedges hedge the exposure
commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss.

to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm

edging derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net gain on fair value changes.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumutative change in the fair value of a h
item in the balance sheet and is also

Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net gain on fair value changes.

..The Company classifies a fair value hedge relationship when the hedged item (or group of items) is a distinctively identifiable asset or liability hedged by one or a few hedging instruments. The financial

' nstruments hedged for interest rate risk in a fair value hedge relationships fixed rate debt issued and other borrowed funds.
TR

e the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hed(ge relationship is discontinued prospectively. if the
tinues hedge accounting from the date on which the qualifying criteria are no longer met. For hedged items recorded at
of the hedged item on termination of the hedge accounting relationship is amortised over the remaining term of the
item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is

edging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or wher
ship does not meet hedge effectiveness criteria, the Company discon
Hised cost, the accumulated fair value hedge adjustment to the carrying amount
figifal hedge using the recaiculated EIR method by recalculating the EIR at the date when the amortisation begins. If the hedged

et gnised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.18.2 Cash flow hedges
A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particu
on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss.

\ar risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve).
The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in net gain/loss on fair value changes in the profit and loss statement.

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the
statement of profit and loss. When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in OCl are

reversed and inciuded in the initial cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at
that time re-mains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCl is immediately transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

3.18.3 Cost of hedging
The Company also may separate forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designate as the hedging instrument only the change in the vaiue of the spot element of a forward

contract. Similarly currency basis spread may be separated and excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument.

a forward contract and designates as the hedging instrument only the change in the value of the spot element of the forward

from a financial instrument and excludes it from the designation of that financial instrument as the hedging instrument, such
t of profit or loss account as a

When an entity separates the forward element and the spot element of

contract, or when an entity separates the foreign currency basis spread
amount is recognised in OCI and accumulated as a separate component of equity under Cost of hedging reserve. These amounts are reclassified to the statemen

reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

Standard issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 : Leases
in March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2019, notifying ind AS 116, 'Leases’. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17

‘Leases'. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019.

ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to
ions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets {e.g., personalcomputers) and short-term leases (i.e.

the accounting for finance leases under indAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exempti
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on

the right-of-use asset.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 116 and its effect on the financial statements .
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 5 : Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.33 0.13 0.34

Balance with banks - - -
In current accounts 329.68 267.33 177.59
In deposit accounts 168.15 0.25 -

Total 488.16 267.71 177.93

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 6: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in fixed deposits to the extent
held as margin money or security against the

borrowings, guarantees, other commitments'" 52.53

30.25

19.50

Total 52.53

30.25

19.50

(1) Deposits accounts with bank are held as Margin Money/ are under fien. The Company has the complete beneficial interest on the income earned from these deposits.

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 7: Loans {at amortised cost}

Term Loans(Net of Assignment)!' ¢ 2 15,841.31 7,814.07 3,526.32
Total (A) Gross 15,841.31 7,814.07 3,526.32
Less: Impairment loss allowance 91.48 24.46 21.81
Total (A) Net 15,749.83 7,789.61 3,504.51
Secured by tangible assets and intangitle assets 15,684.20 7,797.72 3,474.22
Unsecured 157.11 16.35 52.10
Total (B) Gross 15,841.31 7,814.07 3,526.32
Less: Impairment loss allowance 91.48 24.46 21.81
Total (B] Net 15,749.83 7,789.61 3,504.51
Loans in India

Others 15,841.31 7.814.07 3,526.32
Total (C) {1) Gross 15,841.21 7,814.07 3,526.32
Less; Impairment loss allowance 91.48 24 46 21.81
Total (C )} (1) Net 15,749.83 7,789.61 3,504.51
Loans outside India - - -
Total (C) (2) Gross - - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - -
Total (C) (2) Net - - -
Total (C) 15,749.83 7,789.61 3,504.61

{1) Term Loans (net of assignment):

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Total term loans 17,597.83 8,174.95 3,540.23
//" “'Add: Interest accrued on loans 145.96 89.95 33.66
Y ~ 27 ) ess Loans assigned 1,902.48 450.83 47.57
”\?’/ “Térm loans{net of assignment) 15,841.31 7,814.07 3,526.32
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Note 7 : Loans {continued...}

(2) Secured loan includes loan to Director for Rs. 0.56 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs 0.56 crores, Aprit 1, 2017: Rs. Nif).

(3) Secured loans and other credit facilities given to customers are secured / partly secured by :
(a) Equitable mortgage of properly and / or
(b) Pledge of shares / debentures, units, other securities, assignment of life insurance policies and / or
(c) Hypothecation of assets and / or
(d) Company guarantees and / or
(e} Personal guarantees and / or
(f) Negative lien and / or Undertaking to create a security.

7.1. Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers
The company's Analytics Department has designed and operates its Internal Rating Model. The model is tested and calibrated periodically. The model grades loans on a four-point grading scale, and incorporates both

quantitative as well as qualitative information on the loans and the borrowers. The mode! uses historical empirical data of the group to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the

basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit behaviour. Some of the factors that the internal risk based model may consider are:

a) Loan to value

b) Type of collateral

c) Cash-flow and income assessment of the borrower

d) Interest and debt service cover

e) Repayment track record of the borrower

f) Vintage i.e. months on books and number of paid EMIs
g) Project progress in case of project finance

In addition to information specific to the borrower and the performance of the loan, the model may also utilise supplemental external information that could affect the borrower's behaviour. The model is also calibrated to

incorporate external inputs such as GDP growth rate, unemployment rate and factors specific o the sector/industry of the borrower.

The Internal Rating Model is dynamic and is calibrated periodically; the choice of parameters and division into smaller homogenous portfolios is thus also dynamic.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification™.

Amount Rs. in crores

Risk Categorization March 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very Good 14,869.09 - - 14,869.09
Good 170.74 303.81 - 474.55
Average - 154.71 - 154.71
Non-performing - - 197.00 197.00
Grand Total 15,039.83 458.52 197.00 15,695.35
Risk Categorization March 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very Good 7,146.75 - - 7,146.75
Good 203.95 196.75 - 400.70
Average - 127.18 - 127.18
Non-performing - - 49.49 49.49
Grand Total 7,350.70 323.93 49.49 7,724.12
Risk Categorization April 1, 2017

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Very Good 3,215.27 - - 3,215.27
Good 71.32 91.68 - 163.00
Average - 49.85 - 49.85
Non-performing - - 64.54 64.54

>rand. Total 3,286.59 141.53 64.54 3,492.66
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Note 7 : Loans (continued...)

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances in relation to Loans & advances is, as follows:

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars March 31, 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL allowance opening balance 9.70 2.62 12.14 24.46
ECL on assets added/ provision created 36.10 2.90 36.53 75.53
Assels derecognised [including from loan sell downs], repaid and written off/written (8.51)
back (8.34) (0.17) - )
Transfers from Stage 1 (0.44) 0.28 0.16 -
Transfers from Stage 2 2.30 (2.30) - -
Transfers from Stage 3 0.48 - (0.48) -
ECL allowance closing balance 39.80 3.33 48.35 91.48

. March 31, 2018
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance opening balance 4.63 1.04 16.14 21,81
E£CL on assets added/ provision created 7.07 1.91 - 8.98
Assels derecognised [including from loan sell downs], repaid and written off/writien
back (1.60) (0.65) (4.08) (6.33)
Transfers from Stage 1 (0.78) 0.70 0.08 -
Transfers from Stage 2 0.37 (0.38) 0.01 -
Transfers from Slage 3 0,01 - (0.01) -
ECL allowance closing balance 8.70 2.62 12,14 24.46

“The above table does not include the amount of interest accrued but not due in all three years.

7.2. Impairment assessment

The Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in the notes be

7.2. {i} Probability of default

low. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Company
may also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately
detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a parl of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of
the loan. When such events occur, the company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calcutations or whether Stage 2 is
appropriate.

e contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2. Accounts usually go over 30 days past

“Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts wher
ment from stage 2 to

due owing to temporary mismatch in timing of the borrowers' or his/her business' underlying cash flows, and are usually quickly resolved. it has been the company's experience that resolution rates [movel
stage 1] are high and in FY19 99.9% [previous year 98.9%] of slage 2 assels moved to stage 1.

It is the company's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1
once cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been a significant reduction in credit risk.

7.2. {ii) Interna! rating model and PD Estimation process

The company's internal rating and PD estimation process:

The company's Analytics Depariment has designed and operates its Internal Rating Model that factors in both quantitative as well as qualitative information on the loans and the borrowers. The mode! uses historical empirical
data of the group to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit
behaviour. The PDs are computed for these homogenous portfolio segments. The PDs are also used for Ind-AS 109 ECL calculations and the Ind AS 109 Stage classification of the exposure.

The Internal Rating Model is dynamic and is calibrated periodically; the choice of parameters and division into smaller homogenous portfolios is thus also dynamic.

I
: %(ilil;}wgposure at default
The ‘o;\iig»énding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the company. Considering that PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.
%

]
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Note 7 : Loans {continued...}

7.2. {iv) Loss given default

The Company uses historical loss data of the group for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. The estimated re:
the recoveries.

covery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the NPV of

7.2. (v} Significant increase in credit risk
The internal rating model evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The rating model also assesses if there has been a significant incri

significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

ease in credit risk since the previously assigned risk grade One key factor that indicates

7.2. (vi) Company's financial assets measured on a collective basis
For Stage 3 assets ECL is calculated on an individual basis.

For stages 1 and 2 the internal rating model analyses historical empirical data, determines parameters that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on the basis of a combination of these parameters into
smaller homogeneous portfolios. The loss estimation for these pools is hence done on a collective basis. In addition to information specific to the borrower and the performance of the loan, the model may also utilise
supplemental external information that could affect the borrower's behaviour. The model is also calibrated to incorporate external inputs such as GDP growth rate, unemployment rate and factors specific to the sector/industry

of the borrower.

7.3. Inputs to the ECL model for forward looking economic scenarios
The internal rating model also provides for calibration to reflect changes in macroeconomic parameters and industry specific factors.

7.4, Collateral
The company is in the business of extending secured loans mainly backed by morntgage of property (residential or commerciaf).

in addition to the above mentioned collateral, the Company holds other types of collateral and credit enhancements, such as cross-collateralisation on other assets of the borrower, share pledge, guarantees of parent/holding
companies, personal guarantees of promoters/proprietors, hypothecation of receivables via escrow account, hypothecation of receivables in other bank accounts etc.

in its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets, but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through on-rolls collection executives, along with legal means to
recover due loan repayments. Once contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property may be initiated under the provisions of the SARFAES! Act 2002. Re-possessed property is

disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAESI act to recover outstanding debt.

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss aliowance is recognised because of collateral at March 31, 2019. There was no change in the Company's collaterat policy or collateral quality during the

year.
Amount Rs. in crores
As at March 31, 2018
At amortised Cost At fair vaiue through Others Total
proftt or loss
Note 8: Investments
Mutua!l funds - 292.65 - 292,65
Debt securities - 123.02 - 123.02
Equity instruments - - - -
Subsidiary company - - 1.55 1.55
Total gross - 415.67 1.55 417.22
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - - - -
Total net - 415.67 1.55 417.22

pril 1, 2017: Rs. 0.20 crore) into equity shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, Indiabulls Asset

(1) During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has invested Rs 0.70 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs 0.65 crore, A
se), by subscribing to 100,000 equity shares (March 31, 2018: 100,000 shares, April 1, 2017:

Management Mauritius (a private company, limited by shares registered in Maurilius, holding a Category 1 Global Business Licen
30,000 shares) of face value of USD 1 per share.
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Note 8: Investments {continued...}

Amount Rs. in crores

At amortised Cost

As at March 31, 2018
At fair value through Others
profit or loss

Total

Mutual funds 122.17 - 122.17
Debt securities - - -

Equity instruments 54.98 - 54.98
Subsidiary company - 0.85 0.85
Total gross 177.15 0.85 178.00
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss - - -

Total net 177.15 0.85 178.00

Amount Rs. in crores

At amortised Cost

As at April 01, 2017
At fair value through Others
profit or loss

Total

Mutual funds 137.48 - 137.48
Debt securities - - -
Equity instruments - - -
Subsidiary company - 0.20 0.20
Total gross 137.48 0.20 137.68
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss - - -
Total net 137.48 0.20 137.68

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 9: Other financial assets

Advance interest on short term borrowings - 30.80 19.87
Security deposit ®e' Note 25 4.40 1.27 0.33
Interest only strip receivable 149.49 92.81 0.85
Amount receivable on assigned loans 60.77 0.43 2.54
Interest accrued on Deposit accounts 2.10 0.24 0.1
Interest accrued on investments 517 - -

Other receivables - 25.21 -

Other financial assets 3.10 19.14 2.39
Total 225.03 169.90 26.09
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Note11: Property, plant and equipment and intangibte assets

Note 11.1 Property, plant and equipment
Amount Rs. in crores

Leasehold Comp‘utars and Fur.mture and Motor vehicles O.fflce Land Total
Improvements printers fixtures eguipment
Amount in Rs

Cost
At April 1, 2017 0.10 1.47 0.49 7.15 0.39 0.10 9.70
Additions 0.01 0.18 0.06 0.45 0.08 - 0.78
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2018 0.11 1.66 0.56 7.60 0.47 0.10 10.48
Additions 0.96 0.22 0.25 2.89 0.30 - 4.62
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2019 1.07 1.87 0,80 10.49 0.77 0.10 15.10
Depreciation
At Aprif 1, 2017 0.01 0.77 0.08 0.72 0.24 - 1.82
Charge for the year 0.01 0.47 0.05 1.45 0.09 - 2.07
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2018 0,02 1.24 0.13 2.17 0.33 - 3.89
Charge for the year 0.08 0.32 0.07 2.03 0.10 - 2.60
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2019 0.10 1.56 0.20 4.20 0.43 - 6,49
Net Block
At March 31, 2018 0.09 0.41 0.42 5.43 0.14 0.10 6.59
At March 31, 2019 0.97 0.31 0.60 6.29 0.34 0.10 8.61

Note 11.2 Other Intangible assets
Software Total
Amount Rs, in crores

Gross block

At April 1, 2017 9.84 9.84
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2018 9.84 9.84
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2019 9.84 9.84
Amortization

At Aprit 1, 2017 1.15 1.15
Charge for the year 2.46 2.46
At March 31, 2018 3.61 3.61
Charge for the year 2.46 2.46
At March 31, 2019 6.07 6.07
Net biock

At March 31, 2018 6.23 6.23

At March 31, 2019 3.77 3.77
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Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note10: Deferred tax assets /{liabilities) (net)
Deferred tax assets:
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:

Provision for employee benefits 1.89 172 1.45
Difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 0.01 - -
impairment allowance for financial assets 31.97 8.55 7.53
Disallowance under section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,1961 0.01 0.02 0.03
EIR adjustment on loans 13.57 30.97 8.39
Fair valuation of derivatives - 9.46 0.10
47.45 50.72 17.50
Deferred tax liabilities:
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets - 0.58 0.86
Difference between accounting income and taxable income on investments 0.97 0.49 1.51
Provision for bad debts under section 36(1){viia) of the Income Tax Act,1961 5.48 7.70 1.16
Interest only strip receivable 46.69 24.35 0.27
EIR adjustments on borrowings 0.13 0.35 0.16
53.27 33.47 3.96
Net {5.82) 17.25 13.54

Movement in deferred tax balances

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2019

Balance as on
Aprii 01. 2018

Recognised in Profit and

loss

Recognised in OCi

Balance as on
March 31. 2019

Arising on account of temporary differences due to:

Provision for employee benefits 1.72 0.21 (0.04) 1.89
Impairment allowance for financial assets 8.55 23.42 - 31.97
Disallowance under section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,1961 0.02 {0.01) - 0.01
EIR adjustment on loans 30.97 (17.40) - 13.57
Fair valuation of derivatives 9.46 - (9.46) -
Difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets (0.58) 0.59 - 0.01
Difference between accounting income and taxable income on investments (0.49) (0.48) - (0.97)
Provision for bad debts under section 36(1)(viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (7.70) 222 - (5.48)
Interest only strip receivable (24.35) (22.34) - (46.69)
EIR adjustments on borrowings (0.35) 0.22 - (0.13}
Deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) 17.25 (13.57) {9.50) (5.82)

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2018

Balance as on

Recognised in Profit and

Recognised in OCl

Balance as on
March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017 loss

Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Provision for employee benefils 1.45 0.24 0.03 1.72
Impairment allowance for financial assets 7.53 1.02 - 8.55
Disallowance under section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,1961 0.03 (0.01) - 0.02
EIR adjustment on loans 8.39 22.58 - 30.97
Fair valuation of derivatives 0.10 - 9.36 9.46
Difference between book balance and tax batance of fixed assets (0.86) 0.28 - (0.58)
Difference between accounting income and taxable income on investments (1.51) 1.02 - (0.49)
Provision for bad debts under section 36(1)(viia) of the income Tax Act, 1961 (1.16) (6.54) - (7.70)
Interest only strip receivable (0.27) (24.08) - (24.35)
djustments on borrowings (0.18) (0.19) - (0.35)
13.54 (5.68) 9.39 17.25
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Amount Rs, in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at Aprit 01, 2017

Note12: Other non financial assets

Capital advances 0.18 0.47 0.02
Unamorlised portion of deemed cost for corporate guarantees 40.15 - -
Other non financial assets 18.84 6.78 466
Total 59.17 7.25 4.68
Note 13 : Derivative financial instruments Amount Rs. in crores
As at March 31, 2019
Notional amounts Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
Currency derivatives:
- Spot forwards - - -
Total - . N
Amount Rs. in crores
As at March 31, 2018
Notional amounts Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
Currency derivatives:
- Spot forwards 702.87 - 17.40
Total 702,87 - 17.40
Amount Rs. in crores
As at April 01, 2017
Notional amounts Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
Currency derivatives;
- Spot forwards 100.00 - 1.22
Total 100.00 - 1.22

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 14: Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and (Refer Note 37}

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Total




indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Amount Rs. in crores
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Note15: Debt securities {at amortised cost}

Secured

Debentures (1), (2), (3), (4) & (5) {Rerermete: 240 2,215.22 289.47 39.55
Unsecured

Commercial Papers - 2,295.00 1,450.00
Total 2,215.22 2,584.47 1,489.55

(1) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured against morigage of immovable property, hypothecation of other financial assets and current and future loan assets of the Company except such receivable

specifically charged (including investment).

(2) On the August 13, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company authorised the issue of Secured, non-convertible debentures aggregaling upto Rs. 3000 crore, in terms of the provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and other applicable laws. Pursuant to the approval, during the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company raised
INR 2,000 Crores by way of public issue of secured NCDs having a face value of INR 1,000 each. The said NCDs are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Company has fully

utifised the proceeds from the issue of Secured, Non-convertible debentures as per the terms of the issue.

(3) 8.24% (payable annually) Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating to Rs. 250 crore, were issued by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018, were fully
redeemed during the year ended March 31, 2019 on June 07, 2018, in accordance with the terms of the issue of such debentures.

s of Face value Rs.1,000,000 each aggregating to Rs. 200 crore, were issued by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019, are redeemable at

(4) 8.60% (payable annually) Redeemable Non convertible Debenture
f the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company has fully utilised the proceeds from the issue of such debentures as per the terms

par on June 29, 2021 and are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market Segment of
of the issue.

(5) 9.05% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 1,000,000 each aggregating to Rs. 40 crore, were issued by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2017, are redeemable at par on July 7,
2023 and are listed on the Wholesale Debt Market Segment of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company has fully utilised the proceeds from issue of such debentures as per the terms of the issue.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the aforesaid loans or interest as at the balance sheet date.

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Note16: Borrowings (at amortised cost}
Secured
Loan from bank and Others ! & 2! (Refernote 340 5,827.63 3,956.12 1,298.57
Cash credit facility and bank overdraft from banks ?*® 36.21 51.41 -
Loans from related parties
- from Holdina Companv - Indiabulls Housina Finance Limited %3¢ % 247.00 80.00 -
Unsecured
Bank overdraft 2,136.60 - -
Loans from related parties
-Nilgiri Financial Consultants Limited 2 ® - 14.53 10.43
Total 8,247.44 4,102.06 1,309.00
8,247 44 4,102.06 1,309.00

Borrowings in india
Borrowings outside India

8,247.44 4,102.06 1,309.00




indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 16: Borrowings {continued...}

(1) Secured by hypothecation of loan receivables(Current and Future), other financial assets, cash and cash equivalents) of the Company(including investment) and bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents.

(2) Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders.
(3) Secured by hypothecation of receivables(Current and Future) of the Company

(4) Repayable at any time before expiry at the end of 48 months from the date of disbursement.
(5) The unsecured loan from Nilgiri Financial Consuitants Limited is granted for a peried of 12 months. The Company, may at its option, prepay the loan before expiry.

(6) The Company has availed cash credit revolving facility from a ban

Kk with a tenor of 12 months and the same is repayable on demand. The cash credit facility is secured by way of pari passu charge on current assets

including loans and advances and receivables of the Company with a minimum security cover of 1.25 times and a letter of comfort issued by the Holding Company.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the aforesaid loans or interest as at the balance sheet date.

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 17: Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)

Subordinate debt (unsecured) (Refer mote 34 343.96 247.10 -
Total 343.96 24710 -
Subordinated liabilities in India 343.96 247.10 -
Subordinated liabilities outside india - - -
Total 343.96 247.10 -

The Company has fully utiised the proceeds from the issue of subordinated debt as per the terms of the issue.

"There is no continuing default in the repayment of the aforesaid loans or interest as at the balance sheet date.

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 18: Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 145.88 26.72 2.67
Foreign currency forward premium payable - 30.56 2.53
Amount payable on assigned loans 107.21 22.90 -
Other liabilities 47 11 9.78 1.94
Temporary overdrawn Balances as per books 1,560.94 103.20 326.53
Servicing liability on assigned loans 15.87 2312 0.09
Total 1,877.01 216.28 333.76

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

Note 19: Provisions

Provision for emplovee benefits (ReferMete 3%

Compensated absences 1.36 1.32 1.26
Gratuity 4.07 3.52 2.94
Provision for dividend on preference shares - 11.29 9.04
Provision for corporate dividend tax on preference share dividend 2.78 - -
Total 8.21 16.13 13.24

Amount Rs. in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 01, 2017

17.97

9.83

9.84

17.97

9.84




Indiabulis Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financia! Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 21: Equity share capital

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Authorized equity share Capital**® No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares  Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each 25,00,00,000 250.00 6,25,00,000 62.50 4,35,00,000 43.50
Total 25,00,00,000 250.00 6,25,00,000 62.50 4,35,00,000 43.50

(1) Pursuant to and in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated March 15, 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 55 crore
to Rs. 66 crore, divided into 43,500,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of face value of Rs.10 each.

of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held on October 12,

(2) In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any,
26,573 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each,

2017 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 66 crore to Rs. 72.73 crore, divided in to 50,2

of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held on March 1,

(3) In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any,
lue of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each.

2018 the Company’s authorised share capitai was increased from Rs. 72.73 crore to Rs. 85 crore divided in to 62,500,000 equity shares of face val

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held on May 31,

(4) In pursuance of Section 61(1)
Rs. 85 crore to Rs. 135 crore divided in to 112,500,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each.

2018 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from

(5) In pursuance of Section 61(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting held on January 28,
2019 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 135 crore to Rs. 250 crore divided in to 227,500,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each.

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,and pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their extra ordinary general meeting heid on March 14,

(8) In pursuance of Section 81(1)
rore to Rs. 272.50 crore divided in to 250,000,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each and 22,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each.

2019 the Company's authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 250 ¢

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Issued , Subscribed & Paid up capital {rofer i to vi} No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each 24,77,89,324 247.80 6,05,71,401 60.57 4,28,26,288 42.83
Total 24,77,99,324 247.80 6,05,71,401 60.57 4,28,26,288 42.83

(i) Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share.
the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the

in the event of liquidation of the Company,
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

irectors of the Company, at their meeting held on October 31, 2017 granted their

(i) Consequent upon the increase in authorised share capital, on October 12, 2017, and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of D
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 135.13 per equity share fully

approval and the Company issued and allotied 7,400,285 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company,
paid (including securities premium of Rs. 125.13 per share), ranking pari passu with existing shares.

“{iii) Consequent upon the increase in authorised share capital, on March 1, 2018, and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on March 22, 2018 granted their
'pj?tgval and the Company issued and allotted 10,344,828 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company. Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 145 per equity share fully paid
ﬁg@:‘djng securities premium of Rs. 135 per share), ranking pari passu with existing shares.
N
C'(lv) {;onsequem upon the increase in authorised share capital, on May 31, 2018 , and upon receip!
“““méjp,br'qval and the Company issued and allotted 47,077,923 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company,

\‘:/):a \\M/Qé;ﬂuding securities premium of Rs. 144 per share), ranking pari passu with existing shares.
N, D/
\& ~

t of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on June 20, 2018 granted their
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 154 per equity share fully paid

ark

o

S N o



Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 21: Equity share capital {continued...}

(v) Consequent upon the increase in authorised share capital, on January 28, 2019, and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on February 22, 2019 granted their
approval and the Company issued and allotted 117,650,000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its Holding Company, indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 170 per equity share fully paid
(including securities premium of Rs. 160 per share) for a consideration received of Rs. 20,000,500,000 , ranking pari passu with existing shares.

(vi) The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019 granted their approval and the Company issued and allotted 22,500,000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its
Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 80 per equity share fully paid (including securities premium of Rs. 70 per share) by conversion of the outstanding preference shares, ranking pari passu

with existing shares, in accordance with the terms of the issue of such preference shares.

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

Name of the sharehoider As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

No. of shares Amount Rs. in crores No.of shares Amount Rs. in crores
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of year 6,05,71,401 60.57 4,28,26,288 42.83
Add: - -
Equity shares allotted during the year - -
Shares issued for consideration received in cash during
the year 16,47,27,923 164.73 1,77,45,113 17.74
Shares issued pursuant to conversion of Compulsorily
converlible Preference Shares 2,25,00,000 22.50 - -
Equity share outstanding at the end of year 24,77,99,324 247.80 6,05,71,401 60.57
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
f the sharehold ! ' '
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Holding company
indiabulls Housing Finance Limited 24,77,99,324 100% 6,05,71,401 100% 4,28,26,288 100%
Total 24,77,99,324 6,05,71,401 4,28,26,288
Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Equity shares allotted as fully paid pursuant to contract
without payment being received in cash - - - 3.28,26,288 -

* 3,28,26,288 equity shares were allotted by the Company, for consideration other than cash, to the shareholders of IFCPL, pursuant to and in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, approved by the Hon'ble High Court of
Delhi vide its order dated March 15, 2016, which came into effect on March 31, 2016, with effect from the Appointed Date Aprit 1, 2015

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownerships of shares.

Emplovee Stock Options: Refer note 36




indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 22: Preference share capital

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up preference share capital

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Authorized preference share Capital

No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares _AmountRs. in crores No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50
Total 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Issued, subscribed & paid up capital ez No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores No of Shares AmountRs. in crores No of Shares Amount Rs. in crores
Preference shares of Rs. 10 each - - 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50
Total - - 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50

(i) On March 26, 2013 (*the Company"), pursuant to the approval granted by the Members of the Company, at the meeting held on March 26, 2013, has issued 22,500,000 10% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of
face value Rs.10 per share at a premium Rs.80 to its holding Company Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL"). The said preference shares carry cumulative dividend @ 10% per annum. The Company declares and
pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of the Preference Shares is entitled to one
vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affects the rights attached to the Preference Shares. The Preference Shares are convertible into equity shares, at any time at the option of the

Preference Shareholders or on the expiry of 20 years from the date of aliotment viz., March 26, 2013,

(ify The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019 granted their approval and the Company issued and allotted 22,500,000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to its
Holding Company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited ("IHFL") at Rs. 80 per equity share fully paid (including securities premium of Rs. 70 per share) by conversion of the outstanding preference shares, ranking pari passu

with existing shares, in accordance with the terms of the issue of such preference shares.

The reconciliation of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of shares Amount Rs. in crores No. of shares Amount Rs. in crores

Preference shares outstanding at the beginning of year 2,25,00,000 22.50 2,25,00,000 22.50
Add:
Preference shares issued during the year - - - -
Less:
Preference shares converted to fully paid up equity
shares (2,25,00,000) (22.50) - -
Preference share at the end of year - - 2,25,00,000 22.50
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Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 23: Other equity

Amount Rs, in crores

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

Capital reserve

Opening balance 0.17 0.17 0.17
Add: Additions during the year - - -
Closing balance 0.17 0.17 0.17
Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance 4.00 4.00 4.00
Add: Additions during the year - - -
Closing balance 4.00 4.00 4.00
Securities premium account
Opening balance 690.77 458.69 458.69
Add: Additions during the year 2,560.32 232.25 -
3,251.09 690.94 458.69
Less: Share issue expenses 1.69 0.17 -
Closing balance 3,249.40 690.77 458.69
Special reserve uls 36(1){viii) of | Tax Act, 1961
Opening balance 42.91 32.14 2419
Add: Additions during the year 43.74 10.77 7.95
Closing balance 86.65 42.91 32.14
Reserve fund ¥
(Uls 451C of the R.B.I. Act, 1934)
Opening balance 138.70 87.72 76.01
Add: Amount transferred during the year 64.60 50.98 11.71
Less: Amount Utilised - - -
Closing balance 203.30 138.70 87.72
Fair value of corporate guarantee
Opening balance - - -
Add: Additions during the year 41.63 - -
Closing balance 41.63 - -
Debenture redemption reserve
Opening balance - - -
Add: Additions during the year 83.83 - -
Closing balance 83.83 - -
Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 1.73 - -
Add: Additions during the year 2.03 1.73 -
Closing balance 3.76 1,73 -
Retained earnings
Opening balance 328.70 124.14 98.36
Profit during the year 323.00 268.56 47.69
Total (A) 651.70 392.70 146.05




Indiabulls Commerciat Credit Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 23: Other equity (continued...}

Less: Appropriations

Transferred to Special reserve u/s 36(1){viii) of the income Tax Act, 1961 43.74 10.77 7.95
Transferred to Reserve fund u/s 45-IC of the R.B.l. Act, 1934 64.60 50.98 11.71
Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve 83.83 - -
Provision of dividend on preference shares 2.25 2.25 2.25
Corporate dividend tax on preference shares 2,78 - -
Total (B} 197.20 64.00 21.91
Closing balance (A}-(B) 454.50 328.70 124.14
Other comprehensive income

Opening balance (17.67) (0.18) -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 17.68 (17.49) (0.18)
Closing balance 0.01 {17.67) (0.18)
Total 4,127.25 1,189.31 706.68

(1) Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of | Tax Act, 1961
In terms of Section 36(1){(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, a deduction is allowed for income from eligible business viz, Income from providing long-term infrastructure finance, long-term finance for the construction or

purchase houses in India for residential purposes and the business of providing long-term finance for industrial or agricultural development etc. The Company claims the deduction as it falls under some of the categories of
eligible business as defined under Section 38(1){viii) of the income Tax Act, 1961. Consequently the Company has, as at year end, transferred an amount of Rs. 43.74 crore (Previous year Rs. 10.77 crore) to the special

reserve account to claim deduction in respect of eligible business under the said section.

(2) Reserve fund
In terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its Net Profits (after tax)

amount of Rs. 64.60 crore (Previous year Rs. 50.98 crore) to the reserve fund.

to a reserve before any dividend is declared. As at the year end, the Company has transferred an

(3) Capital reserve
The Company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

(4) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(5) Capital redemption reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is crealed when company purchas
transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

es its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is

(6) General reserve

The general reserve is
another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be recl

a free reserve which is used from time to time {o transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to
assified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

(7) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less transfer to general reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution tax) and other distributions made to the shareholders.

(8) Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Companies Act, 2013 requires that where a company issues debentures, it s
maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debentures issue
debentures.

hall create a debenture redemption reserve out of profits of the company available for payment of dividend. The Company is required to
d by a public issue. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised by the company except to redeem

Share based payment reserve
hare based payment reserve is used to record the value of equity-
ﬁvretained earnings upon exercise of stock options by employees.

- settled share based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share based payment reserve are transferred to share

/ﬂ_\“)‘
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Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Amount Rs. in crores

On financial assets

Year ended March 31, 2019

interest income on

On financial assets

Year ended March 31, 2018

interest income on
securities classified at

measured at Amortised sgcurmes classified at Total measured at Amortised . Total
fair value through profit fair value through profit
cost cost
and loss and loss
Note 24: interest income
Interest on loans 1,463.05 - 1.463.05 635.15 - 635.15
Interest on debt securities - 497 497 - - -
Interest on deposits with banks 3.43 - 3.43 1.43 - 1.43
Total 1,466.48 4.97 1,471.45 636,58 - 636.58
Amount Rs, in crores
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31. 2018

Note 25: Dividend income

Dividend income on mutual funds/shares 101.02 83.89
Total 101.02 83.89
Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended Year ended

March 31. 2019

March 31, 2018

Note 26: Fee and commission income

Foreclosure income 35.07 9.63
Fee income from services 88.45 129.03
Total 123.52 138.66
Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended Year ended

March 31. 2019

March 31. 2018

Note 27: Other income

Miscellaneous Income 0.67 -
Sundry credit balances written back 0.02 0.05
Total 0.69 0.05

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended
March 31, 2019
On financial assets
measured at Amortised
cost

Year ended
March 31, 2018
On financial assets
measured at Amortised
cost

Note 28: Finance costs

Debt securities 285.40 125.80
Borrowings (other than debt) 506.87 230.74
Subordinated liablities 29.95 417
Bank charges 0.56 0.12
Other interest expenses 4,02 0.02

826.80 360.85

anks.

pany has recognised premium amounting to Rs.

19.14 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 15.94 crores) on account of foreign currency forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of term



Indiabults Commercial Credit Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended
March 31,2018

Year ended
March 31. 2018

Note 29: Net Loss on fair value changes
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value throuah orofit or loss ‘"’
(i) On trading portfolio

- Derivatives 29.43 5.47
(iiy On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 40.97 67.93
Total net gain/{loss) on fair value changes 70.40 73.40
Fair Value changes:

-Realised 67.65 69.57
-Unrealised 275 3.83
Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 70.40 73.40

d its exposure to variability of expected fair value of its investments in certain

(1) In terms of its policy as approved by its Board of Directors which is consistent with its risk management strategy, the Company has hedge
March 31, 2018: Rs. 0.18 crores), to the Statement of Profit and Loss against

quoted securities by entering into a corresponding futures contracts of the securities. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a net gain of Nif {

which accounting of fair value hedge has been adopted.

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended
March 31, 2019
On financial fiabilities
measured at fair value
through Profit or loss

Year ended
March 31, 2018

On financial liabilities
measured at fair value
through Profit or loss

Note 30: Impairment on financial instruments

EGL on loans / bad debts Written Off (net of recoveries) " 364.41 49.93
Total 364.41 49,93
(1) ECL on loans / bad bebts written off (net of recoveries) includes; Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ECL on loan assets 365.64 52.84
Bad debt recovery” (1.24) (2.91)
Total 364.40 49.93
Net off by bad debt /advances written off of Rs. 112.03 crore (Previous vear:Rs. 1.11 crore).
Amount Rs. in crores
Year ended Year ended

March 31. 2019

March 31, 2018

Note 31: Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages 28.77 27.82
Provision for gratuity, compensated absences /%9 0.86 102
/;;’ NA §3htgibution to provident and other funds 0.46 0.74
oM Sh3re"hased payments to emplovees 2.03 173
C/;” Staff gelfare expenses 0.05 0.03
br [, Charberega 3217 31.34
w0 | Accour 'c.ng,-;'lf -t - .
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indiabulis Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Amount Rs. in crores

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Note 32: Other expenses

Rent and other charges " 4,58 3.23
Rates and taxes 0.55 0.03
Repairs and maintenance 1.55 0.98
Stamp Duty 1.70 1.23
Communication Cost 0.15 0.11
Electricity and waler 0.43 0.28
Printing and stationery 0.13 0.09
Advertisement and publicity 0.09 0.01
Auditor's remuneration-for statutory audi 0.13 0.08
Legal and Professional charges 0.33 0.77
Service Charges 0.11 0.05
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility ! 4.01 1.12
Travelling and Conveyance 0.38 0.57
Depository Charges 0.11 0.07
Collection Charges - 0.1
Recruitment Expenses 0.02 -

Trusteeship Fees - 0.07
Membership Fee 0.13 0.02
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.08 0.03
Total 14.48 8.85

(1) The Company has taken office premises on Lease and Leave & License basis at various locations in India. Lease rent / License fees aggregating to Rs. 4.58 crore (Previous Year Rs. 3.23 crore ) in respect of the same
have been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The agreements are executed for periods ranging from 11 months to 9 years with a renewable clause. In many cases, the agreements also provide for termination at
will by either party by giving a prior notice period between 30 to 90 days. The minimum lease rentals outstanding as at March 31, 2019, are as under:

Minimum Lease Rentals

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018
Amount Rs. in crores
Not later than one year 4.26 2.00
Later than one year but not later than five years 7.82 5.06
Later than five years 4.83 2.85
Total 16.91 9.91

(2) In respect of Corporate social responsibility activities, during the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company was required to spend gross amount of Rs. 4.01 crore (Previous year Rs. 1.12 crore) and Company has
paid/spent Rs. 4.01 crore (Previous year Rs,1.12 crore) in respect of the such activities.




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 33 : Tax Expenses

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are :

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31. 2018
Amount Rs. in crores

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 110.71 124.97
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 13.57 5.68
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 124.28 130.65

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2019:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Amount Rs, in crores
Accounting profit for the year (before income tax) 44728 399.21
india's statutory income tax rate 34.944% 34.608%
Computed expected tax expense 156.30 138.16
Tax effect of amounts to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported
income tax expense:
Tax on Expenses / deductions allowed/disallowed in income tax Act, 1961 1.41 0.79
Disallowance under section 14A of the Income Tax Act 1961 0.42 0.30
Deduction under section 36(i)(vii) of the Income Tax Act 1961 (15.29) (3.73)
Net disallowance under section 36(j)(viia) of the Income Tax Act 1961 (1.17) 1.22
Tax Free Income (35.30) (29.03)
Capital Loss 15.95 23.16
Others 1.96 (0.22)
Income tax expense 124,28 130.65




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 34
(i) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures(payable at par unless otherwise stated)(Secured unless otherwise stated) include: Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
9.05% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,000,000 each Redeemable on July 07, 2023 39.66 39.60 39.55
8 24% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs.1,000,000 each Redeemable on June 07, 2018 - 249.87 -
8.60% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1,000,000 each Redeemable on June 29, 2021 198.03 - -
8 70% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 252020 0.10 - -
8.80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25,2020 9.00 - -
8 80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2021 0.07 - -
8.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2021 19.64 - -
8 80% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2021 893.46 - -
8.90% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2021 934.08 - -
8 66% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2023 20.22 - -
8.90% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25 2023 0.89 - -
9.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2023 73.36 - -
8.75% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25,2028 0.06 - -
8.84% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2028 11.91 - -
9 10% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2028 0.34 - -
3.20% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures of Face value Rs. 1000 each Redeemable on September 25, 2028 13.40 - -
Total 2,215.22 289.47 39.55
(i) (a) Term Loans from banks /financial institutions as at March 31, 2019 includes'™:
As at

March 31, 2019
Amount Rs. in crores
Term Loans taken from Banks. These loans are repayable in bullet at the end of the tenure from the date of disbursement. The average 54.83
batance tenure for these loans is 15 months from the Balance Sheet date.

Particulars

Term Loan taken from Bank. This loan is repayable in half yearly instaiments with moratorium period of 2 years from the date of disbursement. 99.99
The balance tenure for this loan is 21 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loans taken from financial institution. These loans are repayable in half yearly instalments. The average balance tenure for these loans is 1,940.00
61 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loan taken from Bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 1 year from the date of disbursement. 224.95
The balance tenure for this loan is 18 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loan taken from Bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 3 month from the date of disbursement. 488.59
The balance tenure for this loan is 51 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loan taken from Banks. These loans are repayable in quarterly instaiments from the date of disbursement. The average balance tenure 89.71
for these loans is 26 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loan taken from Banks. These loans are repayable in yearly instalments with the moratorium period of 3 years from the date of 979.82
disbursement. The average balance tenure for these loans is 44 months from the Balance Sheet date.
Term Loan taken from Banks. These loans are repayable in yearly instaiments with the moratorium period of 2 years from the date of| 1,949.74
disbursement. The average balance tenure for these loans is 36 months from the Balance Sheet date.

5,827.63

Total
(1) Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders
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Note - 34 (continued...)

(ii) (b) Term Loans from banks as at March 31, 2018 includes'":

As at
March 31, 2018

Particulars
Amount Rs. in crores
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 6 month from the date of disbursement. 27.78
The balance tenure for this loan is 6 months from the Balance Sheet date."
Term loans taken from banks. These loans are repayable in quarterly instaiments from the date of disbursement. The average balance tenure 114.55
for these loans is 18 months from the Balance Sheet date.!"’
Term loans taken from banks. These loans are repayable in yearly instaiments with the moratorium period of 3 years from the date of 829.82
disbursement. The average batance tenure for these loans is 53 months from the Balance Sheet date.'”
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in half yearly instalments with moratorium period of 2 years from the date of disbursement. 99.98
The balance tenure for this loan is 33 months (average) from the Balance Sheet date.t”
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 1 year from the date of disbursement. 299 91
The average balance tenure for this loan is 30 months from the Balance Sheet date.!”
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 1 year from the date of disbursement. 574.80
The balance tenure for this loan is 63 months from the Balance Sheet date.”
Term loan taken from banks. These loans are repayable in yearly instalments with the moratorium period of 2 years from the date of 1,299.69
disbursement. The average balance tenure for these loans is 47 months from the Balance Sheet date.”
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in yearly instaiments with the moratorium period of 2 years from the date of disbursement. 506.53
The balance tenure for this loan is 48 months from the Balance Sheet date.”
Term loan of taken from bank. This loan is repayable by way of bullet repayment at the end of the tenure from the date of disbursement. The 203.06
balance tenure for this loan is 5 months from the Balance Sheet date.?!
Total 3,956.12
(1) Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders
(2) Linked to Libor
(i) {c) Term Loans from banks as at April 1, 2017 includes®":
As at
Particulars April 1, 2017
Amount Rs. in crores
Term loan taken from bank. This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments with moratorium period of 6 month from the date of disbursement. 83.33
The balance tenure for this loan is 18 months from the Balance Sheet date."
Term loans taken from banks. These loans are repayable in quarterly instalments from the date of disbursement. The average balance tenure 116.54
for these loans is 27 months (average) from the Balance Sheet date !V
Term loan taken from bank. This foan is repayable in yearly instalments with the moratorium period of 3 years from the date of disbursement. 199.95
The balance tenure for this loan is 61 months from the Balance Sheet date.”
Term loans taken from banks. These loans are repayable in yearly instalments with the moratorium period of 2 years from the date of 799.74
disbursement. The average balance tenure for these loans is 44 months from the Balance Sheet date.!"
Term loan taken from banks. This loan is repayable in yearly instalments with the moratorium period of 2 years from the date of disbursement. 99.01
The balance tenure for this loan is 20 months from the Balance Sheet date.®
1,298.57

Total

(1) Linked to reference rate used by respective lenders
(2) Linked to Libor
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(iii) Subordinated debt (unsecured) (repayable at par)
As at As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017

Amount in crores Amount in crores Amount in crores
8.45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on November 08, 2027 58.40 58.28 -
8 45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on November 30, 2027 38.92 38.85 -
8.45% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on January 05, 2028 49.97 49.97 -
8 85% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs. 100,000 each Redeemable on March 28, 2028 100.00 100.00 -
8.80% Subordinated Debt of Face value of Rs.100,000 each Redeemable on May 2, 2028 96.67 - -
Total 343.96 247.10 -

(iv) Changes in liabilities arising from financial activities includes negative movement on account of EIR adjustment and changes in foreign exchange rate for Rs. 45.24 crore (March 31, 2018:
positive movement Rs. 5.36 crore)

Note - 35
Contingent Liability and Commitments :

i) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

(a) Bank guarantee of Rs. 17.00 crore {(March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil) in favour of the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd, in addition to security deposit of Rs. 3.00 crore provided by the Company,
towards 1% of the amount raised via public issue of non-convertible debentures i.e. Rs. 2,000 crore, which have been listed on the Exchange, during the year ended March 31, 2019.

iiy Capital commitments not provided for:

(a) Capital commitments (net of capital advances Rs. 0.18 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 0.47 crore) on account of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for, are estimated at Rs.
0.10 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 5.13) .

Note - 36
Employees Stock Options Plans of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (“the Holding Company” “IHFL"):

{i} Grants During the Year:
The Compensation Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company has, at its meeting held on March 09, 2019, granted, 10,000,000 Stock Options representing an equal

number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 each at an exercise price of Rs. 702, being the then latest available closing market price on the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. as on March 8,
2019. These options vest with effect from the first vesting date i.e. March 10, 2020, and thereafter on each vesting date as per the vesting schedule provided in the Scheme.
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Note - 36 {continued...)

The other disclosures in respect of the ESOS / ESOP Schemes are as under:-

IHFL-IBFSL Employees IHFL-IBFSL
Stock Option Employees Stock | IHFL ESQOS - 2013 | IHFL £SOS - 2013 IHFL ESOS - 2013 {HFL ESOS - 2013
- - i -
Particulars Pian |l — 2006 Option ~ 2008
Total Options under the Scheme 7,20,000 75,00,000 3,90,00,000 3,90,00,000 3,90,00,000 3,90,00,000
Total Options issued under the Scheme 7,20,000 75,00.000 1,05,00,000 1,05,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,00,000

Vesting Period and Percentage

Four years,25%
each year

Ten years,15%
First year, 10% for
next eight years
and 5% in last year

Five years, 20%
each year

Five years, 20%
each year

Five years, 20%
each year

Five years, 20%
each year

1st November, 2008

8th December,

12th October, 2015

12th August, 2018

25th March, 2019

10th March, 2020

Remaining contractual Life (Weighted Months)

First Vesting Date 2009
Nine years,11% each year for
8 years and 12% during the N.A. NA. N.A. N.A, N.A,

Revised Vesting Period & Percentage 9th year
Exercise Price (Rs.) 100.00 95.95 394.75 1,156.50 1,200.40 702.00

5 years from 5 years from each | 5 years from each 5 years from each | 5 years from each vesting 5 years from each
Exercisable Period each vesting date vesting date vesting date vesting date date vesting date
Outstanding at the beginning of the year(Nos.) 1,152 3,40,124 45,48,381 1,05,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,00,000
Regrant Addition N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A, N.A.
Regrant Date N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Options vested during the year (Nos.) - 2,05,661 20,25,400 21,00,000 - -
Exercised during the year (Nos.) - 2,68,848 515,825 - - -
Expired during the year (Nos.) - - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - - - -
Lapsed during the year - 600 7,000 1,63,500 1,00,000 -
Re-granted during the year - - - N.A N.A N.A
Outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 1,152 70,676 40,25,656 1,03,36,500 - 1,00,00,000
Exercisable at the end of the year (Nos.) 1,152 70,676 20,07,156 20,67,300 - -

31 52 58 76 N.A 95

N.A - Not Applicable
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IHFL-IBFSL
[HFL-IBFSL Employees HELIBESL | g0t ees Stock | o HEBESE | ir iBFsL Employees
- Employees Stock " Employees Stock "
Stock Option — 2008 . Option " Stock Option
Option = 2008- Option -~ 2008 -
-Regrant Rearant Plan - 2006 - Rearant Plan i = 2006 -Reqgrant
Particuiars seqrant Rearant tearan’
Total Options under the Scheme N.A, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Total Options issued under the Scheme N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A. N.A.
Vesting Period and Percentage N.A N.A N.A. N.A. N.A.

First Vesting Date

31st December, 2010

T6th July, 2011

27th August, 2010

11th January, 2012

27th August, 2010

Ten years, 10% for every year

Ten years, 10% for

Ten years, 10% for

Ten years, 10% for

Ten years, 10% for every

Revised Vesting Period & Percentage every year every year every year year
Exercise Price (Rs.) 125.90 158.50 95.95 153.65 100.00

5 years from each 5 years from each | 5 years from each 5 years from each | 5 years from each vesting
Exercisable Period vesting date vesting date vesting date vesting date date
Outstanding at the beginning of the year(Nos.) 15,570 58,320 79,000 4,500 43,800
Regrant Addition N.A N.A. NA. N.A. NA,
Regrant Date December 31, 2009 July 16, 2010 August 27, 2009 January 11, 2011 August 27, 2009
Options vested during the year (Nos.) 6,390 19,440 39,500 1,500 21,900
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 540 19,440 39,500 1,500 21,900
Expired during the year (Nos.) - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - - -
Re-granted during the year N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 15,030 38,880 39,500 3,000 21,900
Exercisable at the end of the year (Nos.) 8,640 - - - -

60 €9 65 75 65

Remaining contractual Life (Weighted Months)

N.A - Not Applicable

The details of the Fair value of the options as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricing

Model:-
IHFL - IBFSL Employees IHFL - IBFSL IHFL - IBFSL IHFL - IBFSL IHFL - IBFSL Employees
Employees Stock { Employees Stock | Employees Stock N
Stock Option - 2008 X . Stock Option ~ 2008

i Regrant Option - 2008 Option - 2006- Option Plan {i - Regrant
Particulars Regrant Regrant 2006- Regrant
Exercise price (Rs.) 125.90 158.50 95.95 100.00 153.65
Expected volatility* 99.61% 99.60% 75.57% 75.57% 99.60%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each
vesting date Ni Nil Nil Nil Nit
Option Life (Weighted Average) 9.80 Years 9.80 Years 9.80 Years 9.80 Years 9.80 Years
Expected Dividends yield 3.19% 2.89% 4.69% 4.50% 2.98%
Weighted Average Fair Value (Rs.) 83.48 90.24 106.3 108.06 84.93
Risk Free Interest rate 7.59% 7.63% 7.50% 7.50% 7.63%
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Note - 36 {continued...)

IHFL - IBFSL Employees

{HFL ESOS - 2013

IHFL ESOS - 2013

IHFL ESOS - 2013

IHFL ESOS - 2013

Particulars Stock Option ~ 2008 (Grant 1) (Grant 2) (Grant 3) (Grant 4)
Exercise price (Rs)) 95.95 394.75 1,1566.50 1,200.40 702.00
Expected volatility” 97.00% 46.30% 27.50% 27.70% 33.90%
Expected forfeiture percentage on each

vesting date Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil

Option Life (Weighted Average) 11 Years 5 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years
Expected Dividends yield 4.62% 10.00% 5.28% 5.08% 7.65%
Weighted Average Fair Value (Rs.) 52.02 89.76 200.42 226.22 126,96

Risk Free Interest rate 6.50% 8.57% 6.51% 7.56% 7.37%

*The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data.

Note - 37

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year Nil Nil Nil
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the , ) .
accounting year Nit N Nil
(ii)) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made Nil Nil Nil
to the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year Nil Nil Nil
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year Nil Nil Nil
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding

Nit Nif Nit

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note - 38
Seament Reporting:

The Company's main business is financing by way of loans for purchase or construction of residential houses, commercial real estate, loan
other activities of the Company revolve around the main business. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per IND-AS 108 dealing with Operating Segment. No further

disclosures are required in respect of reportable segments, other than those already provided in the financial statements.

against property and certain other purposes in India. All
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Note - 39
Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits — Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance (ESIC), Gratuity and Compensated Absences disclosures as per indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 19 — Employee Benefits:

Contributions are made to Government Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund, ESIC and other statutory funds which cover all eligible employees under applicable Acts. Both the employees
and the Company make predetermined contributions to the Provident Fund and ESIC. The contributions are normally based on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. The Company has
recognised an amount of Rs. 0.47 crores (Previous year Rs. 0.74 crores) in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards Employers contribution for the above mentioned funds.

Provision for unfunded Gratuity and Compensated Absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial

assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 19 on ‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are
actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Disclosures in respect of Gratuity and Compensated Absences:

Amount Rs. in crores
Gratuity Gratuity Compensated Compensated absences
Particulars {unfunded) (unfunded) March absences (unfunded)
March 31, 2019 31,2018 (unfunded) March March 31, 2018
31, 2019

Reconciliation of liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of commitments (as per actuarial valuation) 4.07 3.52 1.36 1.32
Fair value of plans - - - -
Net liability in the Balance Sheet (Actual) 4.07 3.52 1.36 1.32
Movement in net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Net liability as at beginning of the year 3.52 2.94 1.32 1.26
Net expense/(gain) recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.82 0.92 0.04 0.10
Benefits paid during the year {0.17) (0.43) - {0.04)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.09 {0.25) - -
Experience adjustments (0.19) 0.34 - -
Net liability as at end of the year 4.07 3.52 1.36 1.32
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.53 0.55 0.21 0.24
Past service cost - 0.15 - -
Interest cost 0.29 0.22 0.10 0.09
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses - - {0.27) (0.23
Expense/(income) charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.82 0.92 0.04 0.10
Return on plan assets:
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses - - - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
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Note - 39 (continued...)

Amount Rs. in crores

Gratuity Gratuity Compensated Compensated absences
Particulars {unfunded) {unfunded) March absences {unfunded)
March 31, 2019 31, 2018 {unfunded) March March 31, 2018
34,2019

Reconciliation of defined-benefit commitments:
As at beginning of the year 3.52 2.94 132 1.28
Current service cost 0.53 0.55 0.21 0.24
Past service cost - 0.15 - -
Interest cost 0.28 0.22 0.10 0.09
Benefits paid during the year (0.17) {0.43) - (0.04)
Actuarial {(gains)/ losses - - (0.27) (0.23)]
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.09 (0.25) - -
Experience adjustments (0.19) 0.34 - -
Commitments as at end of the year 4.07 3.52 1.36 1.32

Reconciliation of plan assets:

Plan assets as at beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions during the year

Paid benefits

Actuarial (gains)/ losses

Plan assets as at end of the year

The actuarial calculations used to estimate commitments and expenses in respect of Gratuity and Compensated Absences are based on the following assumptions which if changed, would affect

the commitment's size, funding requirements and expense.

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) Compensated Absences {Unfunded)
2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2018 2017-2018
Discount rate — gratuity and compensated absences 7.65% 7.80% 7.65% 7.80%
Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A,
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality table IALM (2006-08) 1ALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)

N.A.: Not Applicable

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date, towards Gratuity and Compensated Absences is Rs. 0.92 crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.88 crore) and Rs 0.33 crore (Previous year Rs. 0.36 crore) respectively.

Gratuity

March 31, 2019 I March 31, 2018
Assumptions Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in (0.29) 0.32 (0.26) 0.28
crores)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assumptions Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in 0.32 (0.29) 0.29 (0.26)
crores)
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Note - 39 (continued...)

Compensated absences

March 31, 2019 ] March 31, 2018
Assumptions Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in (0.10) 0.11 (0.10) 0.11
crores)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assumptions Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in 0.11 (0.10) 0.11 (0.10)
crores)
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: Amount Rs. in crores

Gratuity Compensated absences

Expected payment for future years March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Within the next 12 months (next annual 0.13 0.10 0.05 0.04
reporting period)
Between 1 and 2 years 0.08 0.07 0.03 0.03
Between 2 and 5 years 0.23 0.21 0.08 0.08
Between 5 and 6 years 0.08 0.08 0.02 0.03
Beyond 6 years 3.56 3.08 1.18 1.15
Total expected payments 4.08 3.52 1.36 1.33

Note - 40

Disclosures in respect of IND AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ :
The Company's principal refated parties consist of its holding company,
related party transactions and outstanding balances are with related parties with whom the

indiabulls Housing Finance Limited and its subsidiaries, affiliates and key managerial personnel. The Company's material
Company routinely enter into transactions in the ordinary course of business.

(a) Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

(i) Where control exists
Holding company Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Subsidiary company Indiabulls Asset Management Mauritius

Indiabulls Advisory Services Limited

Indiabulls Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (till October 02, 2016)
Indiabulls Capital Services Limited

Indiabulls Insurance Advisors Limited

Nilgiri Financial Consultants Limited

Indiabulls Asset Holding Company Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies (including step  |indiabulls Collection Agency Limited

down subsidiaries) Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited

Indiabulls Life insurance Company Limited upto (till December 8, 2017)
Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited

Ibulls Sales Limited

indiabulls Holdings Limited

Indiabulls Venture Capital Management Company Limited

(Subsidiary of Indiabulls Holdings Limited)

Indiabulls Venture Capital Trustee Company Limited till March 8, 2018
(Subsidiary of Indiabulls Holdings Limited)

Names of related parties




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 40 (continued...}

(a) Details of related parties (continued...):

(i) Other related parties

Associate of holding company 30 2019)

Acorn Oaknorth Holdings Limited (previously known as Oaknoth Holdings Limited (tilt March

Key management personnel

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal — Non-Executive Chairman (with effect from August 14, 2017) (Whole
Time Director upto August 14, 2017)

Mr. Ripudaman Bandral — Managing Director (with effect from August 16, 2017)

Mr. Anil Malhan- Non Executive Director

(b) Significant transactions with related parties:

Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Issue of equity shares

-Holding company 2725.05 250.00 -
Total 2,725.05 250.00 -
Loan taken (Maximum balance outstanding at any time during the

year)

-Holding Company 3,706.23 1,640.00 1,450.00
-Fellow Subsidiaries 18.50 14.88 10.95
Total 3,723.73 1,654.88 1,460.95
Investment in equity shares

-Subsidiary Company 0.70 0.65 0.20
Total 0.70 0.65 0.20
Interest on loans

-Holding Company 127.21 61.37 36.69
-Fellow Subsidiary 1.24 114 0.95
Total 128.45 62.51 37.64
Assignment of loans

-Holding Company 1,071.48 - -
Total 1,071.49 - -
Receipt for redemption of investment in bonds

-Holding Company 230.00 - -
Total 230.00 - -
Interest on bonds

-Holding Company 3.00 - -
Total 3.00 - -
Service charges

-Holding Company 0.05 0.05 0.13
Total 0.05 0.05 0.13
Payment of preference dividend

-Holding Company 13.54 - -
Total 13.54 - -
Corporate counter guarantees given to third parties by:

-Holding Company 2,015.00 - -
Total 2,015.00 - -
Deemed cost on Fair Value of Corporate Guarantee

-Holding Company 1.47 - -
Total 1.47 - -
Salary / remuneration(Consolidated)

-Key Management Personnel 1.90 1.37 -
Total

Salary / remuneration{Short-term employee henefits)

-Key Management Personnel 1.75 1.10

Total 1.75 10 -

e

»e| Chartered i
K,_ﬂ Accountants | &
3
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Note - 40 (continued...)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties (continued...):

Salary / remuneration(Share-based payments)

-Key Management Personnel 0.05 -

Total 0.05 -

Salary / remuneration(Post-employment benefits)

-Key Management Personnel 0.10 0.27 -
Total 0.10 0.27 -

{c) Outstanding balance:

Amount Rs. in crores

Nature of Transaction As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Loans taken
-Holding company 247.00 80.00 -
-Fellow subsidiaries - 14.53 10.43
Total 247.00 94.53 10.43
Amount receivable on assigned loans
-Holding company 60.77 0.43 0.46
Total 60.77 0.43 0.46
Corporate counter guarantees given to third parties by:
-Holding company 194.00 - -
Total 194.00 - -

(d) The Company has established ICCL lender repayment trust to which it transfers funds solely for the purpose of timely repayment of its borrowings. As at March 31, 2019, total funds amounting

to Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil) were lying with the trust for future repayments which have been included in Other financial assets.

Note - 41
Earnings per share:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (Rs. in crores) 323.00 268.56
Less: Provision for dividend on preference shares 2.25 2.25
Net Profit available for equity shareholders for computing Basic earnings per share (Rs. in crores) 320.75 266.31
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Basic earnings per share (Nos.) 11.00,10,875 4,61,81,470
Earnings per share — Basic (Rs. per share) 29.16 57.65
Net Profit available for equity shareholders for computing Diluted earnings per share (Rs. in crores) 320,75 266.31
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Diluted earnings per share (Nos.) 13,20,79,368 6,86,91,470
Earnings per share — Diluted (Rs. per share) 24.46 39.10
Nominal value of equity shares — (Rs. per share) 10.00 10.00




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note -42
First-time adoption of ind AS

These financial statements, for the ye
the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under

paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

ar ended March 31, 2019, are the first financial statements the Company and have been prepared in accordance with ind AS. For periods up to and including
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2019, together with the comparative period data as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2018, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at
April 01, 2017, the Company's date of transition to ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at April 01, 2017 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Exemptions applied
ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions/exceptions:

Use of Estimates
The estimates at April 1, 2017 and at March 31, 2018 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP apart from the following adjustments:

- Fair valuation of financials instruments carried at FVTPL and FVOCI
- impairment of financial assets based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
- Determination of discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with ind AS reflect conditions at April 1, 2017 the date of transition to Ind AS, and as of March 31, 2018.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

impairment of financial assets
The Company has applied the exception related impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort

to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognized and compared that to the credit risk as at April 1, 2017.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to ind AS

Deemed cost-Previous GAAP carrying amount: (PPE and intangible Assets}
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its PPE, Intangible assets and Investment Properties as recognized in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the

transition date.

Investments in subsidiaries in separate financial statements
In the preparation of separate financial statements, the company has opted to account for its investments in subsidiaries at Previous GAAP carrying amount at the transition date.

Share based payments
The company has opted not to apply Ind AS 102 Share-based payment to equity instruments that vested before date of transition to ind ASs.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile total equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Note - 42 (continued...)

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2017

March 31, 2018 [April 01, 2017
Amount Rs. in crores
Equity as reported under Indian GAAP™ 1,260.82 760.10
Loans
Expected credit loss on financial assets 24 .49 6.06
Impact on loans and advances using Effective rate of interest (88.63) (24.00)
Recognition of interest income under Securitisation/assignment arrangement, derecognised under 69.70 0.75
Previous GAAP
Borrowings
Impact on borrowings using effective rate of interest 1.00 0.49
Addition to Securities Premium 2.38 0.46
Others
Gain/(loss) on change in fair value of derivative designated at FVOCI (27.08) (0.28)
Tax adjustments 7.20 5.93
1,249.88 749.51

Equity as per Ind AS

* excluding preference share capital of Rs. 22.50 crore (April 01, 2017 Rs. 22.50 crore)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount Rs. in

Particulars
crores

Profit after tax for the year as per IGAAP 254.90
IND AS Adjustments for:
EIR on loans and advances (64.63)
EIS and Servicing assets/ liability 68.93
Provisions for Expected Credit Loss 18.44
EIR on borrowings 0.51
Share based payments expense (1.73)
Equity share issue expenses 0.17
Remeasurement on defined benefit plans 0.08
Tax adjustments (8.12)
Total adjustments 13.66
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 268.56
Remeasurement on defined benefit plans (0.09)
Change in fair value of derivatives (26.79)
Income tax refating to above 9.39

251.07

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. EIR on loans and borrowings
Under Indian GAAP, loan processing fees received in connection with loans portfolio was recognized upfront and credited to the profit or loss for the period. Under ind AS, loan processing fee is

credited to profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. The unamortized portion of loan processing fee is adjusted from the loan portfolio.

The Company has entered into assignment transactions. The Company has de-recognized the assigned assets unger previous GAAP as the same meets the de-recognition criteria as per
previous GAAP. However, as per Ind AS, as the Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, the assigned assets have been recognised in the books and a corresponding
liability is also recognized. The transferred assets and the corresponding liabilities are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

For Borrowings Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under IndAS, transaction costs are
included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interest method.

2. Expected Credit Loss on loans & advances
Under Ind AS, allowance is provided on the loans given to customers on the basis of percentage obtained by evaluating the loss of the previous years. Under Indian GAAP, the Company has

created provision for loans and advances based on the Guidelines on prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India. Under ind AS, impairment aliowance has been determined based on
Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company has appropriately impaired its loans and advances, to the extent required. In addition, ECL on off balance sheet loans has also been
determined as per Ind AS). The differential impact has been adjusted in Retained earnings/ Profit and loss during the year. Under indian GAAP Loans & Advances were presented net of provision
for NPA and Provision against standard asset were presented under provisions. However, under Ind AS financial assets measured at amortised cost (majorly loans) are presented net of provision

for exoected credit losses.
3. Interest income under assignment arrangement, derecognised under Previous GAAP

The company has transferred financial assets in a transfer that qualified for derecognition in its entirety. The whole of the interest spread at its present value (
the asset) is recognised on the date of derecognition itself as interest-only strip receivable and correspondingly recognised as profit on derecognition of financial asset.

discounted over the expected life of

4, Defined benefit obligations
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the company recognises costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including

actuarial gains and losses, were charged to profit or loss. Under ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in the balance

sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl.

5. Share-based payments
Under Indian GAAP, the Company recognised only the intrinsic value for the share based pay
an appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting period.

ments plans as an expense. ind AS requires the fair value of the share options to be determined using

6. Derivatives
Under Indian GAAP, exchange differences arising on forward contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rate change.

orward contract/ Principal only Swap and designates as the hedging instrument only the change

However under Ind AS . the Company separates the forward element and the spot element of the fi
designation as the hedging instrument and such amount is recognised in OCI and accumulated

in the value of the spot element of the forward contract and excludes the forward element from the
as a separate component of equity under Cash flow hedging Reserve.

7. Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCl) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per ind AS.

Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

8. Deferred tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. ind AS 12 requires

entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax
base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under indian GAAP.

SBLA g o . . . I . .
i ?ﬂhﬁddup&gﬁ e various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are
recognis}q% orrelation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

[ Char
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Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 43
Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile
indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (ICCL) is a non banking finance company in India and is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). In view of the intrinsic nature of operations, the

company is exposed 1o a variety of risks, which can be broadly classified as follows credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. It is also subject to various regulatory risks. Well-
established systems and procedures provide adequate defense against the reguiatory and operational risk.

Risk management structure and policies
As a lending institution, Company is exposed to various risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The principal objective in Company 's risk management processes is

to measure and monitor the various risks that Company is subject to and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. Company 's risk management framework is driven by Board and
its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset Liability Management Commitiee and the Risk Management Committee. Company gives due importance to prudent lending practices
and has implemented suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include verification of credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer’s business and residence,
technical and legal verifications, conservative loan to value, and required term cover for insurance. The major types of risks that the Company faces in its business are liquidity risk, credit risk,

interest rate risk.

(A) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to an entity arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents (including marketable securities) to meet its obligations at all times. It also ensures having access o
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines. The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement management. In addition,
processes and policies refated to such risks are overseen by senior management and the management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash equivalents vis-a-vis projections.
Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the

liquidity position.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities :

Amount Rs, in Crores

March 31, 2019 Upto One month Over ogsema:)snths to 2 years to 5 years more than 5§ years Total
Borrowings from banks and others 80.89 6,396.75 6,271.75 538.59 13,287.98
Trade payables - 5.15 - - 5.15
Amount payable on assigned loans 107.21 - - - 107.21
Other liabilities 47.10 - - - 47.10
Temporary overdrawn balances as per books 1,560.94 - - - 1,560.94
Derivatives - - - - -
Servicing liability on assigned loans 0.62 14.48 0.77 - 15.87
1,786.76 6,416.38 6,272.52 538.59 15,024.25
March 31, 2018 Upto One month Over ogser;:)snths to 2 years to 5 years more than 5 years Total
Borrowings from banks and others 24.38 4,147.63 3,462.98 435.54 8,070.53
Trade payables - 0.21 - - 0.21
Amount payable on assigned loans - 22.90 - - 22.90
Other liabilities 9.78 - - - 9.78
Temporary overdrawn balances as per books 103.20 - - - 103.20
Derivatives - 17.40 - - 17.40
Servicing liability on assigned loans 0.20 4.54 6.50 11.87 23.11
137.56 4,192.68 3,469.48 447.41 8,247.13
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 43 (continued...)

April 01, 2017 Upto One month Over ogz:gfsnths to 2 years to 5 years more than 5 years Total
Borrowings from banks and others 8.92 2,016.37 1,081.48 47.23 3,154.00
Trade payables - 0.12 - - 0.12
Amount payable on assigned loans - - - - -
Other liabilities 1.95 - - - 1.95
Temporary overdrawn balances as per books 326.53 - - - 326.53
Derivatives - 1.22 - - 1.22
Servicing liability on assigned loans 0.01 0.08 - - 0.09
337.41 2,017.79 1,081.48 47.23 3,483.91

{B) Credit Risk

Credit Risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation orits a

company Credit Risk Management framework is categorized into following main components:

- Senior management's oversight
- Organizational structure

- Systems and procedures for identification, acceptance, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks.

bility to perform such obfigation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the company. The

it is the overall responsibility of the company’s senior management to approve the company's credit risk strategy and lending policies relating to credit risk and its management. The policies are
based on the company's overall business strategy and the same is reviewed every quarter by the senior management.

To maintain credit discipline and to enunciate credit risk management and control process there is a separate Risk Management department independent of loan origination function. The Risk

Manaaameant denartment nerfarms tha functinn nf Credit nnlicy farm

Derivative financial Instruments

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on the balance sheet.

Hatinn cradit limit sattina manitarina nf aredit excentinns / Axnnsiires and raview /manitnrinn nf dnciimentatinn

With gross—settled derivatives, the company is also exposed to a settlement risk, being the risk that the company honours its obligation, but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

Analysis of risk concentration

The Company's concentrations of risk for oans are managed by counterparty and type of loan (

borrowers. The table below shows the concentration of risk by type of loan.

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

Commercial Real Estate - Residential Housing (CRE-RH)

8,280.58

2,229.62

Cthers

7,469.25

5,560.00

i.e. CRE-RH and others as defined by RBI. These are given to both individual and corporate
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Note - 43 (continued...)

The Company’s concentrations of risk {for financial assets other than loans and advances } by industry sector are given below:

Amount Rs. in Crores
|March 31, 2018 Financial services Government Others Total
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 488.16 - - 488.16
Bank balance other than Cash and cash 52.53 - - 52.53
equivalents
investments 417.22 - - 417.22
Other financial assets 22503 - - 225.03
March 31, 2018 Financial services Government Othets Total
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 267.71 - - 267.71
Bank balance other than Cash and cash 30.25 - - 30.25
equivalents
Investments 178.00 - - 178.00
Other financial assets 169.90 - - 169.90
April 01, 2017 Financial services Government Others Total
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 177.93 - - 177.93
Bank balance other than Cash and cash 19.50 - - 19.50
equivalents
Investments 137.68 - - 137.68
Other financial assets 26.10 - - 26.10

(C) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a

exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity prices resulting in a loss to earnings and capital.

Financial institutions may be exposed to Market Risk in variety of ways. Market risk exposure may be explicit in portfolios of securities / equities and instruments that are actively traded. Conversely
it may be implicit such as interest rate risk due to mismatch of loans and deposits. Besides, market risk may also arise from activities categorized as off-balance sheet item. Therefore market risk

financial institution will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign

is potential for loss resulting from adverse movement in market risk factors such as interest rates, forex rates, equity and commodity prices.

The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk and Foreign exchange risk.

(i) Interest Rate Risk:-

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to in
activities give rise o interest rate risk. The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on the company’s net interest income, w
economic value of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures are affected. While assessing interest rate risks, signals given to the market by RBt and government departments from

time to time and the financial industry's reaction to them shall be continuously monitored.

Due to the very nature of financial services, the company is exposed to moderate to higher interest Rate Risk. This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet as well as the income statement of
the company. Interest Rate Risk arises due to:

i) Changes in regulatory or market conditions affecting the interest rates
i) Short term volatility
iii) Prepayment risk translating into a reinvestment risk

iv) Real interest rate risk.

terest rate adjustment within a specified period. The company’s lending, funding and investment
hile a long term impact is on the company’s net worth since the
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 43 (continued...)

Value of Equity (MVE) or net worth. It is essential for the company to not

In short run, change in interest rate affects Company's earnings (measured by NIt or NiM) and in long run it affects Market
ing a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

only quantify the interest rate risk but also to manage it proactively. The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keep
Further company carries out Earnings at risk analysis and maturity gap analysis at quarterly intervals to quantify the risk.

Interest Rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss:

Amount Rs

.in Crores

Particulars

Basis Points

Effect on Profit
before tax and
Equity
for the year ended
March 31, 2019

Effect on Profit
before tax and
Equity
for the year ended
March 31, 2018

e

$ g
i

o

[

kN

%,

AN

Borrowings
Increase in basis points +25 (12.71) (5.79)
Decrease in basis points -25 12.71 579
Advances
Increase in basis points +25 27.89 13.94
Decrease in basis points -25 (27.89) (13.94)
Investments
Increase in basis points +25 (0.37) (0.02)
Decrease in basis points -25 0.37 0.02

Chertered

R
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(ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in

foreign exchange rates relates primary to the foreign currency borrowings taken from banks through the FCNR route.

The Company follows a conservative policy of hedging its foreign currency exposure through Forwards and / or Currency Swaps in such a manner that it has fixed determinate outflows in its
function currency and as such there would be no significant impact of movement in foreign currency rates on the company's profit before tax (PBT) and equity.

{iil) Equity Price Risk
The Company does not have any un
individual stocks.

nedged, financial assets which are subject to equity price risk of decrease in fair value of equities as the result of changes in the level of equity indices and

(D) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from external events.

Operational risk is associated with human error, system failures and inadequate procedures and controls. It is the risk of loss arising from the potential that inadequate information system:
technology failures, breaches in internal controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, or other operational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation problems. Operational risk exists in

all products and business activities.

t have the potential to result in substantial losses includes internal fraud, External fraud, employment practices and workplace safety,

The company recognizes that operational risk event types tha
process management.

clients, products and business practices, business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally execution, delivery and

he Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls
cl q?\ ffective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 44
Transfers of financial assets

Assignment Deals
During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has sold some loans and advances measured at amortised cost pursuant to assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of

such deal, since the derecognition criteria as per IND AS 109, including transfer of substantially all the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred to the buyer being met, the assets have
been derecognised.

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecongnised financial assets measured at amortised cost and gain on derecognition.

Amount Rs. in Crores

i For the year ended For the year ended
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost March 2018 March 2018
Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 1,861.03 488.61
Gain/(loss) from derecognition 96.36 70.13

Since the company transferred the above financial assets in transfers that qualified for derecognition in its entirety. The whole of the interest spread at its present value (discounted over the
expected life of the asset) is recognised on the date of derecognition itself as interest-only strip receivable and correspondingly recognised as profit on derecognition of financial assets.

Note - 45

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserve

primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

s attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The

The Company monitors capital using a capital adequacy ratio as prescribed by the RBI guidelines. Refer note 48 for details.

Note - 46
Fair value measurement

46.1 Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under

current market conditions , regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

46.2 Valuation governance
The Company's process to determine fair values is part of its periodic financial close process. The Audit Committee exercises the overall supervision over the methodology and modets to

determine the fair value as part of its overall monitoring of financial close process and controls. The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value
estimates are also reviewed and challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.
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Note - 46 (continued...)

46.3 Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by leve! of the fair value hierarchy:

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss
Debt Securities - 123.02 123.02
Mutual Funds - 292.65 292.65
Equity instrument - - -
Total financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss - 415.67 415.67
Financial investments measured at fair value through Other comprehensive
lincome
Equities - - -
Total financial investments measured at fair value through Other
comprehensive income
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 415.67 415.67
‘Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis - - -
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 415.67 415.67
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments
Forward contracts - - -
Total derivative financial instruments - - -
Liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value N - N
Amount Rs. in Crores
March 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss
Debt Securities - - -
Mutual Funds - 12217 122.17
Equity instrument 54.98 - 54.98
Total financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss 54.98 12217 177.15
TRancial Mvesiments measured atian vajue hrou i prenensivi
income
Equities - - -
Total financial investments measured at fair value through Other
comprehensive income
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 54.98 12217 177.15
Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial assets measured at fair value 54.98 122.17 177.15
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments
Forward contracts - 17.40 17.40
Total derivative financial instruments - 17.40 17.40
Liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 17.40 -
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Note - 46 (continued...)
Amount Rs. in Crores

April 01, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss -
Debt Securities - - - -
Mutual Funds - 137.48 - 137.48
Equity instrument - - - -
Total financial investment measured at fair value through profit and loss - 137.48 - 137.48
Financial investments measured at fair value through Other comprehensive
income -
Equities - - - -
TO‘@TIH&WI TVesTMments measured at 1ar value mrougn other
comprehensive income -
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis - 137.48 - 137.48
Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 137.48 - 137.48
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments -
Forward contracts N 1.22 1.22
Total derivative financial instruments - 1.22 - 1.22
Liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 1.22 - 1.22

46.4 Valuation techniques

Debenture and Bonds
Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and vields prevailing in the market as at reporting date and are classified as Level 2.

Equity instruments
The fair value of investment in quoted equity shares is measured at quoted price and hence is considered under Level 1.

Mutuai Funds
Open ended mutual funds are valued at NAV declared by respective fund house and are classified under Level 2.

Forward rate contracts
The fair value of Interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of estimated cash flows based on observable yield curves. The fair value of Forward foreign exchange contracts and

currency swaps is determined using observable foreign exchange rates and yield curves at the balance sheet date.

46.5 There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2017.
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Note - 46 (continued...)

46.6 Fair vatue of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does

not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

Amount Rs. in Crores

March 31, 2018

Carrying Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 488.16 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 52.53 - -
equivalent

Trade Receivables - - -
Loans and advances: 15,749.83 - -
Investments — at amortised cost: - - -
Other Financial assets: - - -
Total financial assets 16,290.52 - -
Financial Liabilities:

Trade payables 5.15 -

Debt securities 2,215.22 222972 2,229.72
Borrowing other than debt securities 8,247.44 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 343.96 326.21 326.21

Other financial liability - - N

Total financial liabilities 10,811.77 2.555.93 2,555.93
Off-balance sheet items:

Other commitments - - -

Total off-balance sheet items - - -

Amount Rs. in Crores
March 31, 2018
Carrying Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalent 267.71 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 30.25 - -

equivaient

Trade Receivables - - -
Loans and advances: 7.789.61 - -
Investments — at amortised cost: - - -
Other Financial assets: - - -
Total financial assets 8.087.57 - -
Financial Liabilities:

Trade payables 0.21 - -
Debt securities 2,584.47 2,586.06 2,586.06
Borrowing other than debt securities 4,102.06 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 247.10 244 .41 244 .41
Other financial liability - - -
Total financial liabilities 6,933.84 2.830.47 2.830.47
Qff-balance sheet items:

Other commitments - - -
Total off-balance sheet items - - -
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Note - 46 {continued...}
Amount Rs. in Crores

April 01, 2017

Carrying Vaiue Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 177.93 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 19.50
equivalent

Trade Receivables
Loans and advances: 3,504.51 - - -
Investments — at amortised cost: -
Other Financial assets: -
Total financial assets 3701.94 - - -

Financial Liabilities:

Trade payables 0.12 - -
Debt securities 1,489.55 - 1,490.85 - 1,490.85

Borrowing other than debt securities 1,309.00 - . .
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Other financial liability R

Total financial liabilities 2,798,867 - 1.490.85 - 1,490.85

Off-balance sheet items:
QOther commitments
Total off-balance sheet items -

46.7 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the company's financial

statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Debt Securities & Subordinated liabilities

These includes Subordinated debt, secured debentures, unsecured debentures. The fair values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash

flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are classified in Level 2.

Investments - at amortised cost

These includes Corporate Bonds which are held for maturity. Eair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and are classified under level 2.

Assets and Liabilities other than above

The carrying value of assets and fiabilities other than investments at amortised cost, debt securities and subordinated liabilities represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Note - 47
Disclosures in terms of Annex [I Systemically important Non-Banking financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
updated as on April 16, 2019, to the extent applicable to the Company, are prepared in accordance with the previous GAAP ;
Particulars Amount Rs.in Lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
N ., Amount Amount Overdue Amount Outstanding Amount Overdue
Liabilities side: o X
utstanding

(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
paid:
l(a) Debentures - Secured'” 2,34,420.47 Nil 30,947.66 Nil

. Unsecured Nil Nil Nil Nit

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits Nil Nil Nil
(c) Term Loans® 5,85,804.29 Nil 3,96,002.28 Nil
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing Nit Nil Nil Nil
(e) Commercial Paper. - Nit 2.29.500.00 Nil
(f) Other Loans — (specify nature)
— Loan from Holding Company 24,700.00 Nil 8.000.00 Nil
— L oan from Fellow Subsidiary - Nil 1,453.32 Nit
_ Subordinate Debt™ 36,228.66 Nit 25,422.24 Nit
— From Banks-Cash Credit Facility 1,863.82 Nit 5,140.76 Nil
— From Bank Overdraft facility 2,16,756.91 Nil Nil Nil
(1} Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs. 10,420.47 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1,947.66 Lakhs)
(2 Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs. 2938.98 Lakhs (Previous vear Rs. 302.00 Lakhs)
(3) Includes interest accrued but not paid for Rs. 1,228.66 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 422.24 Lakhs)
Assets side: Amount Rs. in lakhs
' Outstanding as at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below:]
(a) Secured 15,62,607.88 7.79641.12
(b) Unsecured 15,710.82 1,634.70
(3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease Nit Nil
(b) Operating lease Nil Nil
(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
1(a) Assets on hire Nil Nif
(b} Repo d Assets Nil Nil
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed Nil Nil
(b) Loans other than (a) above Nil Nil
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Note - 47 (continued...)

Disclosures in terms of Annex Il Systemically Important Non-Banking financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
updated as on April 16, 2019, to the extent applicable to the Company, are prepared in accordance with the previous GAAP ;

(4) Break-up of Investments: Amount Rs. in lakhs
Outstanding as at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current Investments
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil 5,498.51
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(i} Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil Nil
2. Unguoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(iiy Debentures and Bonds 9.701.45 Nil
(iii) Units of mutual funds 29,264.91 12,216.87
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v)_Others (please specify) 2.560.74 Nit
Long Term investments : - -
1. Quoted : - -
(i} Shares . (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nit Nit
(i) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil Nit
2. Unguoted : - -
(i} Shares: (a) Eguity 155.28 84.89
{b) Preference Nil Nit
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
{iif} Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
(v) Others (please specify) Nil Nil
(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:
Category Amount net of provisions (Rs. in lakhs)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1.Related Parties Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
{b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Other than related parties” 15,57,303.86 15,710.82 1573014 .67 7,77,986.60 1,634.70 7.79.621.31
Total 15,57,303.86 15,710.82 15,73,014.67 7,77,986.60 1,634.70 7,79,621.31

*Exeludes-Provision against loan assets of Rs. 5,304.02 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 1,654.51 Lakhs)
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Note - 47 (continued...)

and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {Current and Long term) in share:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Market Value/ | Book Value (Net of | Market Value / Break up| Book Value (Net of
Category Break up or fair Provision) (Rs. in |or fair value or NAV (Rs.| Provision) (Rs. in
value or NAV (Rs. lakhs) in lakhs) lakhs)
in lakhs)
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries 155.28 155.28 84.89 84.89
(b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Other related parties Nil Nil Nit Nil
2. Other than related parties: - - - -
Investment in equity shares(quoted) Nit Nil 5,869.96 5,498.51
Investment in Units of mutual funds 29,264 .91 29,264 91 12,216.87 12,216.87
Investment in Non Convertible Debentures 9,741.34 9,701.45 Nil Nil
Investment in Security Receipt IB ARC TrustV Alc 2,560.74 2,560.74 Nil Nil
Total 41,722.27 41,682.38 18,171.72 17,800.27
{7) Other information:
Particulars Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties Nil Nil
(b) Other than related parties 19,699.84 4.9438.12
{ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties Nil Nil
(b) Other than related parties 14,3985.81 3,294.61
{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil Nil

Note: in computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have been relied upon by

the Auditors.

Note -48

Disclosures in terms of Annex XIV Systemically Important Non-Banking financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 updated as on April 16, 2019, to the extent applicable to the Company, are prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP;

(i) Disclosure of Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR}):

items As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
CRAR (%) 27.88% 18.72%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 25.41% 15.26%
CRAR - Tier il Capital (%) 2.47% 3.46%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital (Rs in Crores) 350.00 250.00

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt instruments

Nil

Nil|
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Note - 48 (continued...)

(ii)(a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

Amount Rs. in crores

Category

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Direct Exposure

(a) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented.

Individual housing loans up to Rs.15 fakh are Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil Crore). 0.23 2n
(b) Commercial Reai Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, 15 238.41 7 628.04
jand acquisition. development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits; ' R
(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
(i) Residential Nil Nil
(i) Commercial Real Estate. Nil Nil
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 15,238.64 7,630.15
{ii)(b) Exposure to Capital Market: Amount Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(iy direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds 292.65 172.98
the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in
shares (including IPOs / ESOPs). convertible bonds, converible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds; ) )
(iiij advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity - 15.53
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security,
(iv) advances for any other purposes 1o the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / - -
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market : A
makers;
(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources, ) )
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
(viil) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market 292.65 188.51
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Note - 48 (continued...)

ﬂii) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities™:
Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars Deposits Advances Investments Borrowings Foreign Currency assets| Foreign Currency
Liabilities
466.61 295.48 36.21 - -
1day to 30/31 days (one month) 506,17 125 5147 - -
212.73 2.45 - - -
Over one month to 2 months 74550 Ta2 17 770,00 - -
206.72 38.25 72.50 - -
Over 2 months to 3 months 74 67 = =95 75 - -
1,061.42 39.00 374.75 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 56577 53,99 57574 - 5
2,247.30 158.15 2,688.37 - -
1 688,
Over 6 months to 1 year 839.75 0.25 207.50 - 75.33
6,222.72 92.62 5,5660.27 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years 3.555.95 = 193577 - -
4,054.64 - 1,736.14 - -
Over 3 years to 5 years 5447 80 - 2-490.05 - -
1,615.44 1.55 391.41 - -
Over 5 years 7,281.52 0.85 777.75 ; -
Total 16,087.58 627.50 10,859.65 - -
8,008.25 208.51 6,937.94 - 20.88

(Previous year's figures are stated in italics)

“In addition to the investments shown in the table above, the company aiso had cash, cash equivalents and bank balances of Rs. 488.16 Crores [previous year Rs. 267.71 Crores]

Note: in computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submission which have be

auditors.

(iv) Disclosures of Investments

Amount R

5. in crores

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

(1) Value of Investments

(i) Gross Value of Investments

a) in India 41567 177.15
b) Outside India 1.55 0.85
(i) Provision for Depreciation
a) In India Nil Nil
b) Outside India Nil Nil
(iliy Net Value of Investments
a) In India 415.67 17715
b) Outside India 1.65 0.85
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(iy Opening balance Nit Nil
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year Nit Nil
(iii) Less: Write-off/write-back of excess provisions during the year Nit Nil
Nil Nil

(iv) Closing balance

{(v) Disclosures of Derivatives

(a) Forward Rate Agreement/Interest Rate Swap

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2018

Pariculars March 31, 2019
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nit
(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the Nil Nil
agreements
(iiiy Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk arising from swaps Nil Nil
1 The fair valtie of the swan book Nil Nil

en relied upon by the




Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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(b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

() Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year Nil Nit

(instrument-wise)

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding (instrument-wise) Nil Nil

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly| Nil Nil

effective’ (instrument-wise)

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly, Nil Nil

effective’ (instrument-wise)

(c) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company is exposed to risks resulting from changes in forei
financial instruments. it uses derivative instruments such as forwards to manage these risks, in terms of its policy as approved by its Board of Directors which is consistent with it
reduce the impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations. The Company's risk management activities are subject to the
tivities. The Company has appropriately segregated

management strategy. These derivative instruments

management, direction and control of Risk Management Committee of its Board of Directors, which reports to the Board on the scope of its ac

gn currency exchange rates. It manages its exposure to these risks through derivative

s risk

the functions and activities pertaining to its derivative transactions. All derivative transactions entered into by the Company are reported to the Board, and the mark-to-market gain/loss on its
portfolio is monitored regularly by the senior management. As at March 31, 2019, the Company has no outstanding forward exchange contract (March 31, 2018:; seven) (April 01, 2017: one) to
hedge foreign currency risk on the notional principal amount of Rs Nil (March 31, 2018: Rs. 702.87 crores) (April 01, 2017 Rs 100.00 crores) in respect of terms loans from banks.

Quantitative Disclosures

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Particulars Currency Interest Rate Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Currency Derivatives Derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
For hedging Nil Nil 702.87 Nit
(i) Marked to Market Positions(1)
(a) Assel(+) Nil Nil 9.64 Nil
(b) Liability(-) Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iti) Credit Exposure(2) Nit Nit Nit Nit
(iv) Unhedged Exposures Nil Nil Nil Nil

(vi){a) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Amount Rs. in crores

March 31, 2018

Particulars March 31, 2019
(i) No. of accounts 5.00 Nil
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 139.30 Nil
(i} Aggregate consideration 53.03 Nil
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years NA Nil
(v) Aggregate gain/ (loss) over net book value (86.27) Nil

Amount Rs. in crores

{vi)(b) Disclosures relating to Securitisation
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(1) No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions Nit Nit
(2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC Nit Nit
{3) Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of
balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
* First loss Nit Nil
* Others Nil Nil
b) On-balance sheet exposures
* First loss Nit Nil
* Others Nil Nil
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(4) Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures

i) Exposure to own securitisations

* First loss Nil Nil
* loss
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
* First loss Nit Nil
* Others Nil Nil
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
* First loss Nil Nit
* Others Nil Nil
iy Exposure to third party securitisations
* First loss Nil Nil
* Others Nil Nil
(vi)(c) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs

Amount Rs. in crores

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Particulars March 31, 2019
(i) No. of accounts 1,161 258
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 1,861.03 488.61
(i) Aggregate consideration 1,861.03 48861
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years Nil Nil
(v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value Nil Nil
(vi){d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1. (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2. (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
Amount Rs. in crores
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1. No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil

(vii) No penalties have been imposed on the Company by RBI and other regulators for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Nil).
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(viii)The Company has been assigned the following credit ratings:

Instrument

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated of Rs.2500 Crore (Previous year Rs 2500 Crore)

CRISIL AAA/Stable

CRISIL AAA/Stable

Subordinate debt of Rs 500 Crore (Previous Year Rs 500 Crore) CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable

Non Convertible Debentures of Rs.1450 Crore (Previous year Rs 1450 Crore) CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable
NCDs (Public Issue of retail secured redeemable non-convertible debentures) of Rs 3000 Crore |CRISIL AAA/Stable NA

NCDs (Public Issue of retail secured redeemable non-convertible debentures) of Rs 2000 Crore |CRISIL AAA NA

NCDs (Public Issue of retail unsecured redeemable non-convertible debentures) of Rs 500 CRISIL AAA NA

Crore

Commercial Paper of Rs. 3000 Crore (Previous year Rs 3000 Crore) CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed)

Long-term bank facilities of Rs 15000 Crore (Previous year Rs 8000 Crore)

CARE AAA ; Stable (Re

affirmed)

CARE AAA [ Stable

Subordinate Debt Rs. 1200 Crore (Previous year Rs 1200 Crore)

CARE AAA : Stable (Re

affirmed)

CARE AAA ; Stable

Long Term Non Converible Debentures of Rs. 2500 Crore (Previous year Rs 2500 Crore)

CARE AAA ; Stable (Re

affirmed)

CARE AAA : Stable

CARE AAA ; Stable (Re

affirmed)

Public Issue of secured redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs. 5000 Crore

Public Issue of unsecured redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs. 500 Crore CARE AAA ; Stable (Reaffirmed) NA
Commercial Paper of Rs. 8000 Crore CARE A1+ (Reaffirmed) NA
Commercial Paper of Rs. 8000 Crore (Previous year Rs 4000 Crore) ICRA A1+ ICRA A1+
Bank Loan Facilities Rated of Rs.1500 Crore (Previous year Rs 1500 Crore) BWR AAA (Reaffirmed) BWR AAA
Non Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1500 Crore (Previous year Rs 1500 Crore) BWR AAA (Reaffirmed) BWR AAA
Subordinate Debt Rs. 750 Crore (Previous year Rs. 500 Crore) BWR AAA (Reaffirmed) BWR AAA

(ix) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) as per (IGAAP)
CRAR (considering Nil risk weightage on Mutual fund invesiments):-

As at As at
CRAR March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Items
i) Adjusted CRAR-(Total) 28.37% 19.00%
ii) Adjusted CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 25.86% 15.50%
iii) Adjusted CRAR - Tier |l Capital (%) 2.51% 3.50%

~Adjusted CRAR(total) as per Ind AS financials as at March 31, 2019 is 28.17%

*Adjusted CRAR(total) as per IndAS financials as at March 31, 2019 is 28.96% (considering Nil risk weightage on Mutual fund investments).

{x) Additional Disclosures

(a) Provisions and Contingencies

Amol

unt Rs. in crores

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and
Loss Account

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil

Provision towards NPA 223.10 49.96
Provision made towards Income tax(including deferred tax and MAT Credit) 86.60 122.53
Provision for Standard Assets 30.52 20.21

%
\
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(b) Concentration of Advances Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,601.78 1,302.90
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 16.48% 16.68%
{c) Concentration of Exposures Amount Rs. in crores
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 260178 1,325.56
16.30% 16.58%

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC
on borrowers / customers

{d) Concentration of NPAs Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 121.59 42.55
{e) Sector-wise NPAs
As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances

Sector in that sector

Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
MSME 0.38% 0.00%
Corporate borrowers 1.41% 1.99%
Services 0.00% 0.00%
Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
Other personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
Auto Joans and Other Loans 0.31% 0.15%

(fy Movement of NPAs Amount Rs. in crores

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.92% 0.42%
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening balance 49.49 63.54

b) Additions during the year 151.52 37.89

¢) Reductions during the year 4.01 51.94

d) Closing balance 187.00 49.48
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening balance 32.95 47.88

b) Additions during the year 111.01

¢) Reductions during the year - 14.93

d) Closing balance 143.96 32.95
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

¢) Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

16.55 15.66
36.50 49.96
- 49.08
53.04 16.55

(xi) Overseas Assets Amount Rs. in crores

Name of Joint Venture/Subsidiary Other Partner in the JV Country Total Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Indiabulls Asset Management Mauritius- NA Mauritius 1.55 0.85
Wholly Owned Subsidiary
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(xii) Disclosure of Complaints -Customer Complaints

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 20 4
(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 20 4
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil

Note: In computing the above information and disclosures, cerain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory submissions which have been
relied upon by the Auditors.

(xiii) Details of Single Borrower Limit {SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the limits for SGL / GBL

Note -49

Disclosure of Foreign Currency Exposures:-

Particulars Foreign Currency Year ended March 31, 2019

Exchange Rate Amount in Foreign Amount Rs. in Crores

Currency

|. Assets
Receivables (trade & other) NA - - -
Other Monetary assets NA - - -
Total Receivables (A) NA - - -
Hedges by derivative contracts (B) NA - - -
Unhedged receivables (C=A-B) NA - - -
1. Liabilities
Payables (trade & other)
Borrowings (ECB and Others) Usb - - -
Total Payables (D) usb - - -
Hedges by derivative contracts (E) Usph - - -
Unhedged Payables F=D-E) USD - - -
1. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Contingent Liabilities NA - - -
Commitments NA - - -
[ Total (G) NA - - -
Hedges by derivative contracts(H) NA - - -
Unhedged Payables (I=G-H) NA - - -
Total unhedged FC Exposures (J=C+F+l) NA - - -

Note: For the above disclosure, Interest accrued on borrowings at respective year end has not been considered
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Note - 49 (continued...)

Year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars Foreign Currency
Amount in Foreign .

Exchange Rate Currency (USD) Amount Rs. in Crores
l. Assets
Receivables (trade & other) NA - - -
QOther Monetary assets NA - - -
Total Receivables (A) NA - - .
Hedges by derivative contracts (B) NA - - -
Unhedged receivables (C=A-B) NA - - -
1. Liabilities
Payables (frade & other)
Borrowings (ECB and Others) uUsD 65.0441 10,91,01,620 709.64
Total Payables (D) USD 65.0441 10,91.01,620 709.64
Hedges by derivative contracts (E) UsD 65.0441 10,91,01,620 709.64
Unhedged Payables F=D-E}) UsD 65.0441 - -
11i. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Contingent Liabilities NA - . _
Commitments NA - - ”
Total (G) NA - - N
Hedges by derivative contracts(H) NA - - -
Unhedged Payables (i=G-H) NA - - -
Total unhedged FC Exposures (J=C+F+1) NA - - -

Note - 50
There are no borrowing costs to be capitalised as at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil, April 1, 2017: Rs. Nil).

Note - 51
In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets, loans and advances appearing in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the

Company's business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet and no provision is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.

Note -52
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited to the investor Education and Protection Fund as on March 31,

2019 (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 1, 2017: Nil).

Note -53
In terms of Circular no. RBI/2014-15/458, DNBR(PD).CC.No 019/03.10.01/2014-15 dated February 06, 2015, every NBFC is required to become a member of ail Credit information Companies. As

of the date of these financial statements, the Company has obtained the membership of Equifax Information Services Private Limited and CRIF High Mark Credit information Services Private
Limited, Experian Credit Information Company of India Private Limited and Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited.

Chartered

Accountants
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Note - 54
The Company has complied the RBI Directions, 2016 to the extent applicable.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Indiabulls Commercial e{iit Limited

Chartered Accountants .
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